
 
 

 
 

June 16, 2025 

Memorandum from President Murdaugh  
 
 
The District Board of Trustees of 
Tallahassee State College 
444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL  32304 
 
 
 
 
 
The following meeting Agenda and items requiring approval by the District Board of 
Trustees is provided for your use at the Monday, June 16, 2025 Board Meeting. 
 
The meeting will be held on our Main Campus in the Board Room of the Hinson 
Administration Building, at 2:30 p.m. 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 
 
  



Agenda 
District Board of Trustees 
Tallahassee State College 

444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL  32308 
Monday, June 16, 2025 

Business Meeting & Workshop – 2:30 PM 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
            i.         Moment of Silence 

            ii.        Pledge of Allegiance  

 

COMMENTS 

 
            i.         Board Chair 

 
            ii.        Board Members  

 
            iii.       President  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

1. 2025 May Board Minutes 

Approve minutes as presented. 

2. 2025 Presidential Sub-Committee Meeting Minutes 

Approve minutes as presented. 

 

 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 



PRESENTATIONS 

 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allows the 
governing board to focus their time and attention on action items that require more 
elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the consent agenda is to 
support the efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific 
recommendation, then the trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the 
Chair.  This action item will be considered in the regular order of business as an 
individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or 
discussion will remain on the consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the 
consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and unanimous approval of the Board 
of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the consent 
agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the agenda. 

3. Human Resource Report 

4. Attorney Invoices – Bryant Miller Olive (April 2025) 

Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

TSC Foundation 

5. TSC Foundation Update 

Presented as an information item only. 

Academic Affairs 

6. Academic Curriculum Changes 

Approve the proposed academic curriculum changes. 
 

7. Annual, Continuing and Post Award Contract Recommendations 

Approve the recommendations for annual, continuing and post award 
contracts in the attached list. 
 

8. Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools  

Approve the dual enrollment articulation agreements with private school 
boards. 



9. Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards and 
Public Charter Schools 

Approve the dual enrollment articulation agreements with county school 
boards and public charter schools. 

10. Charter School Application Evaluation and Recommendation 

Approve the Innovation Academy of Excellence charter school application. 
 

Administrative Services 

11. Fund Analysis -  

Presented as an information item only. 

12. Use of College Personnel and Facilities  

Approve the use of College resources for Foundation DSO activities as 
presented. 
 

13. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2026-27 Through 2028-2029 

Approve the 2026-27 through 2028-29 CIP, as provided on the attached CIP-1 
and CIP-2 forms. 
 

14. Facilities & Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

15. Sponsored Programs – Provider 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
 

16. Science and Math Building AHU 5 and 6 Replacements Project 

Approve the attached proposal no. 9802343 from SIEMENS as presented. 
 

17. Tallahassee Collegiate Academy Building AHU’s 1- 6 Replacements Project 

Approve the attached proposal no. 9802443 from SIEMENS as presented. 
 

18. Architect Invoice(s) 

Authorize payment of architectural invoice(s) as presented. 

19. College Operating Budget for FY 2025-2026  

Approve the College’s FY 2025-2026 Operating Budget. 
 
 



20. Changes to Salary Schedule 

Approve updates to the 2025 – 2026 Salary Schedule as presented. 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

21. 2025 - 2026 Schedule of Business Meetings and Workshops 

Approve the schedule as presented. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

WORKSHOP 

 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

August 18, 2025                               Location:  Main Campus 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



Minutes 
District Board of Trustees 
Tallahassee State College 

Center for Innovation 
350 South Duval St. 

Tallahassee, FL 32301 
Monday, May 19, 2025 

Business Meeting – 2:30 PM 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
On Monday, May 19, Chair Karen Moore called the Tallahassee College District Board 
of Trustees meeting to order at 2:30 p.m.  
 
Chair Moore asked everyone to stand for a moment of silence and the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Members Present: Chair Karen Moore, Vice Chair Eugene Lamb, Trustees Jonathan 
Kilpatrick, Frank Messersmith, Monte Stevens, and Charlie Ward. 

Absent: Trustee Monesia Brown 

Others Present: President Jim Murdaugh, Candice Grause, Dustin Frost, Trevoris 
McDaniel, Shelly Bell, Cerissa Fondo, Lei Wang, Kalynda Holton, Calandra Stringer, 
Bobby Jones, Bill Spiers, Sheri Rowland, Amanda Clements, Jennifer Peavy, Sean 
McGovern, Christen Givens, Hope Childree, Heather Marie Mitchell, Barbara Wills, Nyla 
Davis, Carlecia Collins, Heather Mitchell, Nicholas Vick, Riley Landy, Bertie Culbreath, 
Kirk Pepper, Wayne Almy, and Calvin Cheung. 

COMMENTS 

 
i. Chair’s Remarks: Chair Moore shared the results of the 

subcommittee’s annual evaluation of President Murdaugh, stating that 
it was universally recognized as exemplary. The president was scored 
on various criteria on a scale of one to five, with five being the highest 
rating. Chair Moore proudly announced that President Murdaugh was 
awarded a score of five in every category. She congratulated the 
president on the outstanding review and thanked Vice Chair Lamb for 
his support in reviewing the president’s contract and evaluation. Chair 
Moore also expressed appreciation for President Murdaugh’s 
unwavering support of the students, faculty, and staff.  
 



Chair Moore concluded her remarks by recognizing several recent 
milestones, including the Healthcare Pinning ceremonies, Spring 
Commencement, the Heroes and Public Safety banquet and awards, 
the Veterans Coin and Cord ceremony, and the inaugural graduation 
ceremony for the Tallahassee Collegiate Academy, celebrated the 
graduation of twelve young women. She commended Trustee 
Kilpatrick for serving as the featured speaker at the Veterans Cord and 
Coin event. 
  

ii. Trustee Remarks: 
a. Trustee Kilpatrick noted that the Healthcare Pinning Ceremony 

is a favorite due to the visible emotion and pride on graduates' 
faces. He expressed his honor at serving as the speaker at the 
Veterans Coin and Cord ceremony and extended his gratitude 
to the remarkable individuals who chose to attend TSC. He 
noted that the commencement ceremonies continue to be an 
exceptional celebration of student achievement. 

b.  Vice Chair Eugene Lamb expressed his appreciation to the 
staff for their hard work organizing the many recent events. 

c. Trustee Ward thanked the staff for their hard work and 
congratulated Dr. Murdaugh on his evaluation, praising his 
excellent performance and leadership. 

d. Trustee Stevens praised the Healthcare Pinning Ceremony and 
mentioned that the Veterans' Cord and Coin Ceremony is a new 
favorite, noting the incredible joy in graduates' eyes. He also 
shared that TSC Athletic Director Chuck Moore has hired 
Chelsea Waters as the new Women’s Basketball coach and 
said he looks forward to the team's future success. 

e. Trustee Messersmith remarked that the Healthcare Pinning and 
commencement ceremonies never fail to impress. He 
commended the college’s progress and accomplishments under 
President Murdaugh's leadership, noting that he believes it 
seems deserving of even higher recognition. He extended his 
congratulations to the president on a job well done. 
 

iii. President's Remarks: President Murdaugh began by thanking the 
subcommittee for reviewing his contract and evaluation and expressed 
his gratitude to the trustees for their insights. He emphasized any 
recognition he receives is a direct reflection of the amazing team he 
works alongside and accepted the trustees’ kind comments on behalf 
of every team member. 

 
He highlighted several recent events, including commencement and 
Healthcare Pinning ceremonies, noting that they are annual highlights 



for him. This year, he added a new personal favorite: the Dual 
Enrollment graduation ceremony, where 75 students from three 
counties earned associate degrees at no cost to their families. This 
number was a significant increase from the previous year.  
 
President Murdaugh also celebrated the graduation of the fifth cohort 
of the President's Leadership Institute. The success of the program 
has attracted interest from other colleges seeking to replicate it.  
 
He shared that the Heroes in Public Safety Banquet saw record 
attendance, with around 450 attendees. The event honors outstanding 
individuals and highlights the college’s commitment to recognizing 
excellence in public safety. 
 
Special congratulations was given to Jazanae Rolle, a senior from the 
Tallahassee Collegiate Academy, who was named a Best and 
Brightest award winner in the leadership category. He noted that the 
college offers scholarships to Best and Brightest winners.  
 
He then welcomed Chelsea Waters, the new Women’s Basketball 
Head Coach. A former TSC assistant coach, she brings a wealth of 
experience from her playing career in Europe after graduating from 
Gonzaga University. Coach Waters expressed her excitement about 
the opportunity.  
 
President Murdaugh invited VP Heather Mitchell to introduce lobbyists 
Carlicia Collins and Kirk Pepper from Gray Robinson, who provided a 
legislative update. 
 

 Carlicia Collins thanked the College for its trust and shared a 
brief update on the legislative session. 

 Kirk Pepper explained that only 7 - 10% of appropriations 
project requests typically receive funding, with actual 
disbursements usually closer to 5 - 10% of the total requested 
amounts, underscoring the challenge in securing state 
appropriations. 

  
President Murdaugh asked for clarification regarding the status of the 
trustee term limits bill, which Mr. Pepper confirmed had failed.  

Chair Moore requested additional details on budget implications and 
Trustee Stevens asked if there would be any interruption to employee 
health insurance coverage if the budget has not passed by June 30. 



VP Barbara Wills assured trustees that operations and employee 
health coverage would continue without disruption. She noted that, per 
state requirements, the College must adopt a budget to be submitted 
to the State Department of Education by June 30. President Murdaugh 
added  that adopting a continuation budget would fulfill this 
requirement and ensure uninterrupted operations. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. 2025 April Board Minutes 

Approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Vice Chair Lamb  SECOND: Trustee Messersmith 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 

VP Candice Grause provided an overview of recent media coverage for the college. 
 
Highlights included: 

 Tallahassee Collegiate Academy’s graduating class, known as the Diva Dozen, 
gained significant media attention, boasting a collective GPA over 4.0, which 
underscored the value of dual enrollment programs.  

 Florida Politics noted Tallahassee State College's prominence among academic 
institutions and acknowledged the school's Human Resources team for receiving 
the 2025 Innovation of the Year award from the League of Innovation 

 The Forensics Team was commended for its stellar representation of the school.  
 TSC was featured on the cover of Diverse Issues in Higher Education Magazine, 

a nationwide publication that partners with NISOD. 
 Broadcast clips included commencement coverage and a feature on the 

Veterans Cord and Coin Ceremony. 
 
Chair Moore acknowledged that this was VP Grause’s final trustee meeting, and on 
behalf of the Board, expressed heartfelt appreciation for her leadership and 
contributions to the College.  Several trustees offered personal remarks recognizing her 
professionalism, dedication, and impact. 

VP Grause thanked the trustees for their kind words, sharing that the decision to move 
on was not an easy one, and that serving the College has been both an honor and a 
privilege. 



 

PRESENTATIONS 

 President Murdaugh congratulated Nyla Davis, Director of Human Resources, 
and Heather M. Mitchell, Learning and Development Manager, for receiving the 
2025 Innovation of the Year Award from the League of Innovation for the 
College’s professional development program. Ms. Davis thanked President 
Murdaugh for investing 1% of the College’s operating budget in professional 
development, noting the TSC serves as a model for other institutions. Ms. 
Mitchell expressed her passion for professional development and her pride in 
contributing to the College’s growth. 

 President Murdaugh welcomed John Schultz, Forensic Coach, to share 
highlights from the team’s successful year. Mr. Schultz thanked the Board and 
College leadership, and introduced the team, noting their impressive 
achievements: winning the two-year state tournament for the 25th time in 27 
years, and capturing the four-year state title for the second time in three years. 

 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allows the 
governing board to focus their time and attention on action items that require more 
elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the consent agenda is to 
support the efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific 
recommendation, then the trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the 
Chair.  This action item will be considered in the regular order of business as an 
individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or 
discussion will remain on the consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the 
consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and unanimous approval of the 
Board of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the 
consent agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the 
agenda. 

 

2. Attorney Invoices – Bryant Miller Olive (April 2025) 

Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

3. Human Resource Report 
Motion to Approve Consent Agenda 
MOTION: Trustee Kilpatrick  SECOND: Trustee Ward 



Motion passed unanimously.  
 

TSC Foundation 

4. TSC Foundation Update 

Presented as an information item only. 

 

Administrative Services 

5. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

6. Fund Analysis - April 

Presented as an information item only. 

7. Architect Invoice(s) 

Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Stevens  SECOND: Trustee Kilpatrick 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 

8. Sponsored Programs – Provider 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
MOTION: Vice Chair Lamb  SECOND: Trustee Stevens 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT- No public comment. 

 

 

 

WORKSHOP- Enrollment Update 

Dr. Sheri Rowland, Vice President for Student Affairs 

Janet Hartman, Executive Director of the Florida Public Safety Institute 

Shelly Bell, Vice President for Workforce Development 

A PowerPoint presentation was shown and is available on the TSC website, TSC.fl.edu.   



 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 May 21 Law Enforcement Officer of the Year Nominee ceremony at FPSI 
 May 22, Cheers and Tears-Farewell honoring Candice, 3-5 p.m. 
 May 26 Memorial Day- Campus closed. 
 May 29 AI Innovations Summit, TSC Turner Auditorium/SU Ballroom 
 June 4 SUS & FCS President and Trustee Chairs Meeting in Miami-

Commissioner’s Summit 
 
 
 
 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

June 16, 2025                               Location:  Main Campus 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  Chair Moore called for adjournment at 4:18 p.m. 

 

 
 
_______________________                                                         _______________________       
Karen Moore                                                                          Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D.       
Chair                     President  

 
 

 



    MINUTES  
   District Board of Trustees  
   Presidential Evaluation and  
Contract Sub-Committee Meeting 
     Tallahassee State College  
       Center For Innovation 

                                       350 South Duval Street 
      Tallahassee, FL. 32301 

 
 

Monday, May 19, 2025 

The meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m. 

Trustees Present: Chair Karen Moore, Vice Chair Eugene Lamb. 

Others Present: President Jim Murdaugh, Attorney Riley Landy, Human Resource 
Director Nyla Davis, Tatianna Kimble (notary), and Bertie Culbreath. 

Chair Moore thanked everyone for being available for the President’s evaluation and 
contract meeting. President Murdaugh also thanked everyone for being present for his 
evaluation and contract review. President Murdaugh indicated that annually, on or 
before the first day of June, a subcommittee of the Board, acting on behalf of the Board, 
meets with the president to complete three tasks. 

 

1.) Ensure the president has completed his annual comprehensive physical. 
2.) Discuss the president’s annual performance review. 
3.) Review the president’s contract. 

Director Davis confirmed that the president provided a letter from the Mayo Clinic, which 
was placed in his personnel file, satisfying the annual physical examination requirement. 
She advised that all performance evaluations were completed individually by the TSC 
District Board of Trustees. The results were compiled and sent to President Murdaugh 
and the District Board of Trustees. President Murdaugh expressed his appreciation for 
the comments from the Trustees. He remarked that he was grateful for the amazing 
team at TSC and our wonderful trustees on the board. Chair Moore acknowledged how 
fortunate we are to have President Murdaugh’s leadership skills. Vice Chair agreed and 
mentioned that we couldn’t ask for a better person to lead TSC.  The president’s 
contract was reviewed and discussed.  

The subcommittee approved the contract and evaluation on behalf of the TSC District 
Board of Trustees. 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:20 p.m. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

June 16, 2025 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Human Resource Report 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval for personnel actions. 
 
Overview and Background 
The College brings forth a request to approve appointments, separations and outside 
employment.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
Personnel actions are taken to the District Board of Trustees monthly.  The Board has not 
addressed this item previously. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This item is funded by the 2024-2025 Operating Budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the report as presented. 

 



Name Position Department Effective Date
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date
Antonio Wright Administrative Assistant Science & Mathematics May 5, 2025
Xzaria Bullard Career and Academic Advisor Student Affairs May 6, 2025
Travaun Leverette Custodial Services Specialist Facilities May 8, 2025
Ananya Thumballi Ganapathi Instructional Designer TSC Online May 12, 2025
Nathan Broome Campus Police Officer Campus Police May 12, 2025
Kyle Belich Systems Administrator Information Technology May 12, 2025
Tiffanie Kelley Career and Academic Advisor Student Affairs May 15, 2025

Name Position Department Effective Date
Ellicia Stephens Radiologic Technology Faculty Healthcare Professions May 8, 2025
Tanjanika Brown Medical Assisting Faculty Healthcare Professions May 8, 2025

Name Position Department Effective Date
Niya Martin CSP Contract Support Specialist DOE Charter Schools May 5, 2025
Robert Barlow Career Development Specialist DOC - 100 Hour - Charlotte C.I. May 5, 2025
Donna Heiple Career Development Specialist DOC - 100 Hour - Hamilition C.I. May 8, 2025

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position
None to Report

Name Position Department Enrollment Date End Period 
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date Separation Type
Alecia Donaldson Office Manager, Human Resources Human Resources May 2, 2025 Dismissed
Lorgens Petit Frere Call Center Representative Student Affairs May 8, 2025 Resigned
Natalie Montgomery Elementary Education Faculty Applied Science & Technology/Academic Affairs May 8, 2025 Contract Not Renewed
Rebecca Aragon Program Manager FDOT May 8, 2025 Resigned
Zachary Sheffield Program Manager FDOT May 8, 2025 Resigned
Fredrica Jenkins Simulation Lab Technician Healthcare Professions May 16, 2025 Resigned
Jason Schiess Lead Instructor Hospitality/ Retail Management DJJ - Workforce Development May 16, 2025 Dismissed
Chiquita Lockwood Campus Police Officer Campus Police May 19, 2025 Resigned
Traniece Harris Career Development Specialist DOC - 100 Hour - Avon Park May 19, 2025 Resigned
John Palmer Student Success Specialist FPSI May 23, 2025 Resigned
Thomas Griffin Student Financial Advisor Student Financial Services May 23, 2025 Dismissed
Mathew Danuff Learning Commons Specialist Learning Commons May 30, 2025 Resigned
Caysey Williams Administrative Assistant Student Affairs May 30, 2025 Resigned

Name Position Department Employer Position
Summer Dusek Associate Dean Social Science Lamar State College - Orange Adjunct
Ron Larson Computer Programming Faculty Applied Science & Technology/Academic Affairs ETS/College Board Reader
Katelyn Rodd Regional Civics Coach DOE - Civics Literacy Manatee County School District Volleyball Coach

Name Position Department Office Position
None to Report 

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position
None to Report

Original Appointments - Executive, Administrative, Managerial & Professional 

Original Appointments - Classified Staff

Original Appointments - Faculty 

Original Appointments -  Contracts & Grants 

Personnel Changes (Promotions, Demotions - All Employees)

Drop Retiree Participants (All Employees) 

Outside Employment Requests (All Employees) 

Seeking to Hold Political Office Requests (All Employees)

Seeking to Hold Political Office Requests (All Employees)

Separations



 
 

 
 

June 16, 2025 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
  
SUBJECT: Attorney Invoices – Bryant Miller Olive (April 2025) 

 
 
Item Description 
Request for approval to pay invoices from Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for legal services provided 
related to collective bargaining process and related to Faculty labor relations. 
  
Overview and Background 
The College engaged Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for representation during the collective 
bargaining process. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board of Trustees approved the agreement for these services at the October 17, 2022 
Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funding is budgeted in Fund 1, the Current Unrestricted Fund. The current amount due is 
$777.50 for May 2025. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

 



Barbara K. Wills
Chief Business Officer, Vice President for Administrative 
Services
Tallahassee State College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

June 2, 2025
85976

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
State College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-021103

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

05/01/2025 DMH Draft email to client and review reply 0.10

05/06/2025 DMH Prepare for and attend zoom meeting / bargaining 0.60

05/06/2025 DMH Draft emails to UFF 0.10

05/08/2025 DMH Review email from UFF and reply 0.10

05/08/2025 DMH Draft email to client and review reply 0.10

05/09/2025 DMH Review email from client and reply 0.10

05/09/2025 DMH Draft email to Union and review reply 0.10

05/12/2025 BRR Review emails regarding bargaining links (x2) 0.10

Current Services 1.30 $317.50

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

Denise M. Heekin 1.20 $250.00 $300.00

Beatriz R. Ramirez 0.10 $175.00 $17.50

Total Current Work $317.50

Previous Balance Due $460.00

Balance Due $777.50



Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

June 02, 2025
85976

25480.006
Tallahassee State College

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
1545 Raymond Diehl Road, Suite 300

Tallahassee, FL  32308
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2



 
 

 
 

June 16, 2025 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         

Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TSC 
Foundation 

  
SUBJECT: TSC Foundation Update 

 
 
Item Description 
The following is an update of the events planned and initiatives & activities undertaken by the 
TSC Foundation. 
 
Overview and Background 
Attached is a report of funds raised by the TSC Foundation to date for the current fiscal year.  
The report includes a summary of total funds received, giving summary by designated area, 
number of donors, and number of gifts. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees receives a Foundation update at every Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no Funding/Financial implications arising from this standard monthly report. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only. 

 



YTD 23/24 YTD 24/25 YTD 25/26
Total Received $197,505.73 $253,127.05 $165,865.82

Facility Support $3,947.16 $431.08 $20,147.34
Program Support $58,633.33 $104,805.53 $84,066.49
Scholarship Support $93,318.74 $84,264.30 $28,278.09
Unrestricted Support $41,606.50 $63,626.14 $33,373.90

Net Assets $20,451,199.83 $24,007,122.77 $27,141,020.15

YTD 23/24 YTD 24/25 YTD 25/26
Number of Donors 276 360 326
Number of Gifts 529 696 731

YTD 23/24 YTD 24/25 YTD 25/26
Total Received for Alumni $19,400 $13,295 $12,228

Number of Donors 67 64 58
Number of Gifts 130 140 141

YTD 23/24 YTD 24/25 YTD 25/26
Cash $184,506.03 $253,127.77 $165,865.82
Gifts in Kind $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Raised - Pledges Received $0.00 $30,220.88 $0.00
Planned Gifts Confirmed 0 1 0
Planned Gift Amount $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00
Grants Applied For 10
Grants Received $0.00
Pledges Expected by March 31, 2026 $58,721.67

The Foundation's Fiscal Year is April - March

TSC Foundation

TSC Foundation

$

TSC Foundation - Financial Update FY 24-25
April 1, 2025 - June 3, 2025

TSC Foundation



 
 

 
 

June 16, 2025 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
  
SUBJECT: Academic Curriculum Changes 

 
 
Item Description 
This item presents new programs, program changes, and new courses.  
 
Overview and Background 
The Academic Planning Committee members review and make recommendations for Board 
approval for new and revised curricula.  
 
The College is proposing the Social and Human Services A.S. Degree. This program will 
provide students with a degree and industry certification to work as Certified Behavioral 
Health Technician (CBHT) or a Certified Community Health Worker (CCHW). According to 
Florida’s Department of Commerce, the program is projected to grow by 3.8% and has 500 
job openings with a mean salary of $50,326.   
 
Additionally, the College is proposing two new career and technical certificates: (1) Medical 
Assisting and (2) Practical Nursing (LPN). According to Florida’s Department of Commerce, 
Medical Assisting has 1,000 job openings and is projected to grow by 5.7% as well as has an 
average salary of $42,317.  The LPN program is projected to grow by 1.9% with 600 job 
openings and an average salary of $60,000.  
 
The College is also recommending changes to several of the A.S. degree programs to update 
courses, change program titles, and to replace electives with updated skills-focused courses.  
All changes have been recommended by our local advisory boards to better prepare students 
for future jobs. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
None  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approved curricula revisions annually. 
 
Recommended Action 



Approve the proposed academic curriculum changes. 
 



NEW PROGRAMS 
 
Social and Human Services, A.S. (60 credit hours)  
This program has a regional growth rate of 3.8% in Leon, Gadsden, and Wakulla with 500 job 
openings as reported by the Florida Department of Commerce. The average salary is $50,326 and 
the Apalachee Center for Mental Health Care is requesting a new degree to create a pipeline of 
talent as well as to provide upskilling for current employees. Students who complete the AS degree 
in Social & Human Services complete the education requirements to become a Certified Behavioral 
Health Technician (CBHT) or a Certified Community Health Worker (CCHW). 
 

Program courses: 
   ENC1101 College Composition (3) 

Humanities State Core (3) 
MAC1105 College Algebra (3) – or- MGF1130 Mathematical Thinking (3) 
Science State Core (3) 
POS1041 National Government (3) 
PSY2012 General Psychology (3) 
CLP2140 Abnormal Psychology (3) 
DEP2004 Developmental Psychology (3) 
HUS1001 Introduction to Human Services (3) 
HUS1302 Basic Counseling Skills (3) 
HUS1320 Introduction to Crisis Intervention (3) 
HUS2200 Introduction to Group Dynamics (3) 
HUS2415 Case Management in Human Services (3) 
HUS2500 Ethics in Human Services (3) 
HUS2400 Substance Abuse Counseling (3) 
HUS2315 Services for the Elderly (3) 
HUS2317 Trauma and Recovery (3) 
HUS1801 Human Services Practicum I (3) 
HUS2821 Human Services Practicum II (6) 

 
Medical Assisting Career Certificate (1,300 clock hours) 
This career and technical certificate (CTC) program is on the Regional Demand List for 2025-2026 
with a 5.7% growth rate in Leon, Gadsden, and Wakulla counties according to Florida’s Department 
of Commerce.  The average salary is $42,371 and there are 1,000 job openings each year in TSC’s 
service district.  
 

Program courses:  
   HSC0003 Basic Healthcare Worker (90) 
   MEA0002 Introduction to Medical Assisting (250) 
   MEA0501 Medical Office Procedures (75) 

MEA0521 Phlebotomist, MA (75) 
   MEA0543 EKG Aide, MA (75) 
   MEA0942 Practicum Experience (200) 
   MEA0581 Clinical Assisting (230) 
   MEA0530 Pharmacology for Medical Assisting (90) 
   MEA0573 Laboratory Procedures (125) 
   MEA0506 Administrative Office Procedures (90) 

 
 



Practical Nursing Career Certificate (1,350 clock hours) 
This career and technical education certificate (CTE) program is on the Regional Demand List for 
2025-2026 with a 1.9% growth rate in Leon, Gadsden, and Wakulla counties according to Florida’s 
Department of Commerce.  The average salary is $60,000 and there are 600 job openings each year 
in TSC’s service district. Students who complete this program will be able to accelerate through 
TSC’s A.S. degree in Nursing. 

 
Program courses:  

   PRN0098C Practical Nursing Foundations I (300) 
   PRN0099C Practical Nursing Foundations II (300) 
   PRN0290C Medical Surgical Nursing I (300) 
   PRN0291C Medical Surgical Nursing II (300) 
   PRN0690C Comprehensive Nursing and Transitional Skills (150) 
 
 
PROGRAM CHANGES  
 
Surgical Technology, A.S. (64 credit hours) 
The program changes are a result of the advisory board recommendations to better prepare 
students for current positions. 
   

Delete program courses: 
    BSC1084C Human Biology: Essentials of Anatomy and Physiology (4) 

HSC1000 Orientation to Perioperative Services (3) 
HSC1000L Orientation to Perioperative Services Lab (1) 
STS1302 Introduction to Surgical Technology (4) 
STS1302L Introduction to Surgical Technology Lab (2) 
STS1310 Surgical Techniques and Procedures (4) 
STS2361 The Art of Teamwork in Surgery (1) 
STS1310L Surgical Techniques and Procedures Lab (2) 
STS2953 Surgical Technologist Portfolio I (1) 
STS2954 Surgical Technologist Portfolio II (2) 

     
  Add program courses:  

BSC2085 Anatomy and Physiology I (3) 
BSC2085L Anatomy and Physiology I Lab (1) 
BSC2086 Anatomy and Physiology II (3) 
BSC2086L Anatomy and Physiology II Lab (1) 
STS2131 Surgical Technology I (3) 
STS1940 Surgical Technologist Clinical Orientation (1) 
STS2132 Surgical Technology II (3) 
STS2931 Surgical Technology Seminar (2) 
 

Business Management, A.S. (60 credit hours) 
The changes were recommended by the advisory board to align the A.S. degree with the bachelor’s 
degree in business.  The title change also aligns with Florida’s Department of Education Curriculum 
Frameworks. 



  Delete current title:  
    Business Management, A.S. 
 
  Add new title: 
    Business Administration, A.S. 
 
Small Business Management Certificate (24 credit hours) 
The changes were recommended by the advisory board to align the certificate with title change for 
the A.S. degree in business.  The title change also aligns with Florida’s Department of Education 
Curriculum Frameworks. 
  Proposed title change:  
    Business Development and Entrepreneurship Certificate 
 

Delete program course: 
    OST1324 Business Math (3) 
     
  Add program course:  

ACG2021 Financial Accounting (3) 
 
 
Engineering Technology, A.S. (60 credit hours) 
The changes were recommended by the advisory board to replace the 15 credit hours of electives in 
the program with engineering-focused courses. 
   

Delete program course: 
    Any college credit course (15) 
     
  Add program course:  

ETS2160C Semiconductor Manufacturing Fundamentals (3) 
ETS1603C Introduction to Robotics (3) 
BCN2405 Statics and Strength of Materials (3) 
EGS1002 Introduction to Engineering (3) 
ETS1542C Introduction to Programmable Logic (3) 

 
 
NEW COURSES 
 
Course ID Course Name Rationale for New Course Lab Fee 
HUS1001 Introduction to Human 

Services 
Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS1302 Basic Counseling Skills Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS1320 Introduction to Crisis 
Intervention 

Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS2200 Introduction to Group 
Dynamics 

Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 



HUS2415 Case Management in Human 
Services 

Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. $0 

HUS2500 Ethics in Human Services Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS2400 Substance Abuse Counseling Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS2315 Services for the Elderly Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS2317 Trauma and Recovery Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS1801 Human Services Practicum I Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

HUS2821 Human Services Practicum II Part of the new Social and 
Human Services, A.S. 

$0 

MEA0002 Introduction to Medical 
Assisting 

Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $30  

MEA0501 Medical Office Procedures Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $30  

MEA0521 Phlebotomist, MA Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $309  

MEA0543 EKG Aide, MA Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $309  

MEA0942 Practicum Experience Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $250  

MEA0581 Clinical Assisting Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $0 

MEA0530 Pharmacology for Medical 
Assisting 

Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $0 

MEA0573 Laboratory Procedures Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $0 

MEA0506 Administrative Office 
Procedures 

Part of the new Medical 
Assisting Career Certificate $0 

PRN0098C Practical Nursing Foundations 
I 

Part of the new Practical 
Nursing Career Certificate 

Course starts May 
2026 (lab fee to be 
proposed in March 

2026) 

PRN0099C Practical Nursing Foundation 
II 

Part of the new Practical 
Nursing Career Certificate 

Course starts May 
2026 (lab fee to be 
proposed in March 

2026) 

PRN0290C Medical Surgical Nursing I Part of the new Practical 
Nursing Career Certificate 

Course starts May 
2026 (lab fee to be 
proposed in March 

2026) 

PRN0291C Medical Surgical Nursing II Part of the new Practical 
Nursing Career Certificate 

Course starts May 
2026 (lab fee to be 
proposed in March 

2026) 

PRN0690C Comprehensive Nursing and 
Transitional Skills 

Part of the new Practical 
Nursing Career Certificate 

Course starts May 
2026 (lab fee to be 
proposed in March 

2026) 



STS2131 Surgical Technology I Part of the Surgical 
Technology restructure. 

$0 

STS2132 Surgical Technology II Part of the Surgical 
Technology restructure. 

$0 

STS1940 Surgical Technologist Clinical 
Orientation 

Part of the Surgical 
Technology restructure. 

$0 

STS2931 Surgical Technology Seminar Part of the Surgical 
Technology restructure. 

$40 

ETS2160C Semiconductor Manufacturing 
Fundamentals 

Part of the Engineering 
Technology restructure. $0 

ETS1603C Introduction to Robotics Part of the Engineering 
Technology restructure. $0 

 
 
COURSE REVISIONS 
 
Course ID Course Name Type of 

Change 
Current  Proposed Rationale for 

Change 
STS2323 Surgical 

Procedures I 
Prerequisite 
Credit hours 
Contact hours 

Prerequisite: 
none 
Credits: 4 
Contact: 4 
 

Prerequisite: 
BSC2085 and 
BSC2085L 
Credit: 3 
Contact: 3 

Part of the 
Surgical 
Technology, 
A.S. program 
restructure 

STS2323L Surgical 
Procedures I 
Simulation 
Lab 

Corequisite 
Credit hours 
Contact hours 

Corequisite: 
none 
Credits: 2 
Contact: 10 

Corequisite: 
STS2323 
Credits: 5 
Contact: 15 

Part of the 
Surgical 
Technology, 
A.S. program 
restructure 

STS2324 Surgical 
Procedures II 

Credit hours 
Contact hours 

Credits: 4 
Contact: 4 

Credits: 3 
Contact: 3 

Part of the 
Surgical 
Technology, 
A.S. program 
restructure 

STS2324L Surgical 
Procedures II 
Simulation 
Lab 

Credit hours 
Contact hours 

Credits: 2 
Contact: 10 

Credits: 1 
Contact: 3 

Part of the 
Surgical 
Technology, 
A.S. program 
restructure 

STS2944 Surgical 
Technologist 
Clinical I 

Prerequisite 
Credit hours 
Contact hours 

Prerequisite: 
none 
Credits: 3 
Contact: 9 

Prerequisite: 
STS2323L 
Credits: 7 
Contact: 24 

Part of the 
Surgical 
Technology, 
A.S. program 
restructure 

STS2945 Surgical 
Technologist 
Clinical II 

Prerequisite 
Credit hours 
Contact hours 

Prerequisite: 
none 
Credits: 3 
Contact: 9 

Prerequisite: 
STS2944 
Credits: 6 
Contact: 36 

Part of the 
Surgical 
Technology, 
A.S. program 
restructure 

CLP2140 Abnormal 
Psychology 

Course title Abnormal 
Psychology 

Psychopathology The field of 
psychology has 



moved toward a 
more inclusive 
and sensitive 
terminology. 

 
COURSE DELETIONS 
 
Course ID Course Name Rationale for Course Deletion 

HSC1000 Orientation to Perioperative 
Services 

The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

HSC1000L Orientation to Perioperative 
Services Lab 

The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

STS1302 Introduction to Surgical Technology 
 

The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

STS1302L Introduction to Surgical Technology 
Lab and Clinical 

The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

STS1310 Surgical Techniques and 
Procedures 

The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

STS1310L Surgical Techniques and 
Procedures Lab and Clinical 

The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

STS2953 Surgical Technologist Portfolio I The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

STS2954 Surgical Technologist Portfolio II The course will no longer be offered due to 
Surgical Technology, A.S. restructuring. 

COP2360 Introduction to C# Programming Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

COP2373 Programming Concepts II Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

CTS1760C Microsoft Specialist: Outlook Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

CTS2240C Microsoft Specialist: Advanced 
Word 

Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

CTS2401C Microsoft Specialist: Access Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

DIG2030 Digital Video Production Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

DIG2205C Multitrack Recording and Basic 
Film Sound 

Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

DIG2251C Introduction to Digital Audio I Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

DIG2257C Production Sound Recording and 
Mastering 

Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

DIG2410C Basic Scripting for Video and 
Digital Media 

Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

GEB2100 Introduction to Business Analytics Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

ETM1020C Energy Management Concepts Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 



OST1324 Business Mathematics Course no longer offered due to program 
deletion. 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

June 16, 2025 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
  
SUBJECT: Annual, Continuing and Post Award Contract Recommendations 

 
 
Item Description 
This item describes the status of full-time faculty at TSC and recommends certain faculty for 
either annual or continuing contract. 
 
Overview and Background 
For 2024-2025, TSC had 188 full-time faculty employed.  Of those, 103 were on continuing 
contract, 83 were on annual contract and 2 were on a temporary contract.   
 
Of the 103 faculty on continuing contract, six resigned, three retired, and 16 developed post-
award review portfolios for our post-award process.  All full time faculty continue to be 
reviewed annually; post-award portfolios consist of selected work from a five-year period of 
annual reviews.  Of those on post-award review, all 16 faculty successfully completed the 
post-award review.   
 
Of the 83 faculty on annual contract, there is currently one faculty on annual contract working 
toward continuing contract.  The one faculty is being recommended for continuing contract 
based on at least five years of review and satisfactory growth.   
 
The remaining 82 annual faculty are finishing their first, second, third, or fourth year at TSC, 
and they are progressing well as new faculty.  Of these, seven have resigned and two were 
non-renewed.  A total of 73 faculty are being recommended for an annual contract for the 
2024-2025 academic year.   
 
Two temporary non-continuing faculty’s contracts are ending. They were hired for Fall 2024 
and Spring 2025 to temporarily fill unexpected vacancies.   
 
One continuing contract faculty is being recommended to return to annual contract due to not 
fulfilling the professional obligations required of faculty. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
All positions are funded, no new funds are needed. 



 
Past Actions by the Board 
TSC’s Collective Bargaining Agreement, Article 11 describes annual and continuing contracts 
at TSC and requires Board of Trustees approval  
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the recommendations for annual, continuing and post award contracts in the 
attached list. 

 



  June 16, 2025 

  
Recommended for Annual Contract  
Beth Gesinski Applied Sciences and Technology 
Coy Chambers Applied Sciences and Technology 
Frank Trombino Applied Sciences and Technology 
Gene Tanner Applied Sciences and Technology 
Grant Macdonnell Applied Sciences and Technology 
Jasun Burdick Applied Sciences and Technology 
Jenny Busset Applied Sciences and Technology 
Jessica Barfield Applied Sciences and Technology 
Jim Quinn Applied Sciences and Technology 
Jon Eppes Applied Sciences and Technology 
Lilly Denning Applied Sciences and Technology 
Luis Santisteban Applied Sciences and Technology 
Marissa Mainwood Applied Sciences and Technology 
Noble Sissle Applied Sciences and Technology 
Ron Larson Applied Sciences and Technology 
Shayna Alexander-Murphy Applied Sciences and Technology 
Sonja Reed Applied Sciences and Technology 
Whitney Bolden Applied Sciences and Technology 
Akila Wilson Communications and Humanities 
Alexa Doran Communications and Humanities 
Amber Cresgy Communications and Humanities 
Ceron Bryant Communications and Humanities 
Darrell Jordan Communications and Humanities 
Michelle Dam Communications and Humanities 
Terrisa Anderson Communications and Humanities 
Amairani Trejo Healthcare Professions 
Angela Goodson Healthcare Professions 
Ashley Brown Healthcare Professions 
Brittany Sullivan Healthcare Professions 
Brooke Shealey Healthcare Professions 
Carol Andresen Healthcare Professions 
Elizabeth Fillingim Healthcare Professions 
Ellicia Stephens Healthcare Professions 
Gaynell Brown Healthcare Professions 
Jeffrey Fillingim Healthcare Professions 
Jeremy Wortham Healthcare Professions 
Jo Hendricks Healthcare Professions 
Joshua Peebles Healthcare Professions 
Kayse Green Healthcare Professions 
Makeshia Brockman Healthcare Professions 
Michelle Siples-Ward Healthcare Professions 
Miranda McCoy Healthcare Professions 



Rachel Kennedy Healthcare Professions 
Shareese Hardy Healthcare Professions 
Tanjanika Brown Healthcare Professions 
Yashica Clark Healthcare Professions 
Yolanda Forman-Payton Healthcare Professions 
Abdullah Malik Sciences and Mathematics 
Angela Muchovej Sciences and Mathematics 
Brandon Story Sciences and Mathematics 
Carl Saltzberg Sciences and Mathematics 
Chris Chamberlin Sciences and Mathematics 
Daniella Azor Petit Sciences and Mathematics 
Dwight Lillie Sciences and Mathematics 
Hannah Clayton Sciences and Mathematics 
Ivory Council Sciences and Mathematics 
Jackie Zimmerman Sciences and Mathematics 
Jacob Reed Sciences and Mathematics 
Joseph McNeil Sciences and Mathematics 
Kia Sanders Sciences and Mathematics 
Krishna Patel Sciences and Mathematics 
Margarette Bayron-Arcelay Sciences and Mathematics 
Matt Schnippert Sciences and Mathematics 
Michal Paul Sciences and Mathematics 
Nancy Domm Sciences and Mathematics 
Shaikh Obaidullah Sciences and Mathematics 
Susannah Dorrance Sciences and Mathematics 
Travis Bates Sciences and Mathematics 
Wade Henning Sciences and Mathematics 
Will Owens Sciences and Mathematics 
Anthony Thompson Social Sciences 
Iris Davis Pendleton Social Sciences 
Philip Hazard Social Sciences 
 

 

Recommended for Continuing Contract 
 

Lorinda Simon Healthcare Professions 
  
Recommended for Continuing Contract - Post Award 
Ha Hoang Applied Sciences and Technology 
Elise Ray Mohallil  Communications and Humanities 
Eva Nielsen Communications and Humanities 
Frederick Owens Communications and Humanities 
Julie Baroody Communications and Humanities 
Lu Vickers Communications and Humanities 
Melissa Olson Healthcare Professions 
Bob Lutz Sciences and Mathematics 
Guy Dormeus Sciences and Mathematics 
Hector Quinones Pena Sciences and Mathematics 



Karen Kinard Sciences and Mathematics 
Martin Balinsky Sciences and Mathematics 
Stephanie Breedlove Sciences and Mathematics 
Suzanne Ferrell-Locke Sciences and Mathematics 
Denise Spivey Social Sciences 
Melissa Soldani Social Sciences 
  
  
Recommended for Non-Renewal  
Natalie Montgomery Applied Sciences and Technology 
Tina Thompson Healthcare Professions 
 

 

Recommended for Returning to Annual Contract from Continuing Contract 
Rosalinda Wright Communications and Humanities 
 
  

 

 



 

 
 
 

June 16, 2025 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D. 

Vice President and Provost 
 

SUBJECT: Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools 

 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
private schools in TSC’s service district.  
 
Overview and Background 
Florida Statute 1007.271(24), states that postsecondary institutions must enter into dual 
enrollment articulation agreements with qualified private secondary schools in its 
geographic service area seeking to offer dual enrollment courses to its students. TSC has 
worked with the local private schools that have requested access to dual enrollment for their 
students. These agreements parallel the agreements made with public school boards. 
This year TSC is proposing agreements with Avant School of Excellence, Capital 
Preparatory School, Christ Classical School, Community Christian School, Community 
Leadership Academy, Maclay School, North Florida Christian School, Robert F Munroe 
School, Rose Academy, Savary Academy, St. John Paul II Catholic School, Tallavana 
Christian School, Tree of Life, and Wakulla Christian School. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees. lab, or online course fees. Per the 1009.30, 
F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual Enrollment 
Scholarship Program, private schools will not be invoiced for the 2025-26 academic year. 
TSC will submit reimbursement requests to the Florida Department of Education during 
the fall, spring and summer semesters. The reimbursement will be requested for the 
tuition and required instructional materials. The school districts are responsible for the 
cost of the instructor if the course is taught at the high school site by a TSC instructor.  
 
 



 

  Past Actions by the Board 
 The Board approved these agreements annually. 
 

 Recommended Action 
 Approve the dual enrollment articulation agreements with private school boards. 
. 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Avant School of Excellence and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Avant School of Excellence, hereinafter referred 

to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 

31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Avant School of Excellence and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 
 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Avant School of Excellence, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Avant School of Excellence School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Avant School of Excellence  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Capital Preparatory School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Capital Preparatory School, hereinafter referred 

to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 

31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Capital Preparatory School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 
 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Capital Preparatory School, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Capital Preparatory School School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Capital Preparatory School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Christ Classical School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Christ Classical School, hereinafter referred to as 

the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 

2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Christ Classical School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Christ Classical School, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Christ Classical School School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Christ Classical School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Christian School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Community Christian School, hereinafter 

referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 

end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Christian School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Christian School, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Community Christian School, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Community Christian School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Community Leadership Academy and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Community Leadership Academy, hereinafter 

referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 

end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Leadership Academy and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Leadership Academy, Florida, and The 

District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it 

to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 

1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Community Leadership Academy, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Community Leadership Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Maclay School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Maclay School, hereinafter referred to as the 

School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Maclay School and the President of Tallahassee State 

College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 



 

 
 

2 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 
Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  



 

 
 

3 

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  



 

 
 

4 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 



 

 
 

5 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 



 

 
 

6 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 



 

 
 

7 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 
3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 



 

 
 

9 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 



 

 
 

10 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 



 

 
 

11 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 



 

 
 

13 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 



 

 
 

14 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Maclay School, Florida, and The District Board of 

Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by 

their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual 

Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Maclay School, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Maclay School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

North Florida Christian School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of North Florida Christian School, hereinafter 

referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 

end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of North Florida Christian School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of North Florida Christian School, Florida, and The 

District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it 

to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 

1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, North Florida Christian School, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, North Florida Christian School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Robert F Munroe and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Robert F Munroe, hereinafter referred to as the 

School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Robert F Munroe and the President of Tallahassee 

State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 



 

 
 

2 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 
Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  



 

 
 

3 

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  



 

 
 

4 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 



 

 
 

5 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 



 

 
 

6 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 



 

 
 

7 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 
3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 



 

 
 

9 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 



 

 
 

10 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 



 

 
 

11 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 



 

 
 

13 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 



 

 
 

14 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Robert F Munroe, Florida, and The District Board of 

Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by 

their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual 

Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Robert F Munroe, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Robert F Munroe  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Rose Academy and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Rose Academy, hereinafter referred to as the 

School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Rose Academy and the President of Tallahassee State 

College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 



 

 
 

2 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 
Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  



 

 
 

3 

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  



 

 
 

4 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 



 

 
 

5 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 



 

 
 

6 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 



 

 
 

7 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 
3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 



 

 
 

9 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 



 

 
 

10 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 



 

 
 

11 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 



 

 
 

13 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 



 

 
 

14 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Rose Academy, Florida, and The District Board of 

Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by 

their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual 

Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Rose Academy, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Rose Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Savary Academy and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Savary Academy, hereinafter referred to as the 

School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Savary Academy and the President of Tallahassee 

State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 



 
 

2 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 
Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  



 
 

3 

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  



 
 

4 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 



 
 

5 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 



 
 

6 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 



 
 

7 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 



 
 

8 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 
3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 



 
 

9 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 



 
 

10 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 



 
 

11 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 
 

12 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 



 
 

13 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 



 
 

14 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Savary Academy, Florida, and The District Board of 

Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by 

their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual 

Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Savary Academy, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Savary Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

16 

APPENDICES 



 
 

17 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Savary Academy 

Career Dual Enrollment – Commercial Vehicle Driving Career 

Certificate Program (5029A) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. (320 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College –  Transportation and Logistics Center  

Course: TRA0080 Tractor Trailer Truck Driving 

Course Description:  

TRA0080: This course will prepare students for entry into the trucking and logistics industry. Students 

study vehicle safety, accident prevention, operating regulations, cargo handling, documentation 

procedures, pre-trip preparation, vehicle inspection, maintenance, service, control procedures, backing, 

coupling, uncoupling, maneuvering, road and hazardous driving skills, math, communication, 

employability, entrepreneurship, and licensing requirements. This course will focus on broad, transferable 

skills and will stress understanding and demonstration of the following elements of the commercial 

vehicle driving industry: planning, management, finance, technical and product skills, underlying 

principles of technology, labor issues, community issues and health, safety, and environmental issues. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 18 years of age at the start of the program 

• Have a Department of Transportation (DOT) Medical Card (Physical Exam) 

• Have a clean driving record 

• Pass drug screening 

  

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Jessica Griffin (TSC’s Director of Continuing Workforce Education) by August 1, 

2025, for Fall and December 1 for Spring 

• Completed Workforce application 

• Department of Transportation (DOT) Medical Card (Physical Exam) 

• Driving record 

• Drug screening results 



 
 

18 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $854.40 per student (based 

on $2.67 per clock hour) 

TSC  

Instructional Materials Fee $1,714.00 

 

TSC   

Drug Test $80.00 Savary Academy Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

DMV Record $30 Savary Academy Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Physical Exam $100.00 Savary Academy Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Permit Exam $6 (retake $16) Savary Academy Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

 

 

  



 
 

19 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Savary Academy 

Career Dual Enrollment – Electrical Pre-Apprenticeship Course 

BCV0603 Electrician Helper (8015A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 7:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m. (300 clock hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Courses: BCV0603 Electrician Helper  

Course Description:  

BCV0603: This course provides lecture, demonstration, and hands-on practice in basic electrical skills 

such as basic principles, tools, safety, navigating the NEC, basic math, applied math, circuit theory, 

Ohm’s Law, symbols, conduit bending, and residential requirements. 350 Clock Hours. Additional fee. 

Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 High School Elective Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025, for Fall 

and December 1 for Spring 

 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of 

Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 per 

clock hour) 

TSC  

Instructional Materials $300.00 TSC  

 

  



 
 

20 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Savary Academy 

Career Dual Enrollment – Landscape & Turf Management Course 

ORH0862 Nursery Workers (5044A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. (300 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Friday 

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Course: ORH0862 Nursery Workers 

Course Description:  

ORH0862: This course provides technical skills and knowledge necessary for nursery workers, including 

aspects of horticulture and the landscape industries. Contact: 300 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not 

count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective High School Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 (based on $2.67 per clock 

hour) 

TSC Fall semester after 

Enrollment 

Verification District 

will be invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $210.00 Student fees for the 

Landscape & Turf 

Management career dual 

enrollment programs are 
covered by the CAP 

(Career and Professional 

 



 
 

21 

Education) Grant for the 

25-26 academic year. This 

grant provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills while 

still in high school. 

 

 

  



 
 

22 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Savary Academy 

Career Dual Enrollment – Marine Service Technologies Course 

MTE0003C Marine Rigger (5045A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  12:00 noon – 2:00 p.m. (300 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Course: MTE0003C Marine Rigger 

Course Description:   

MTE0003C: This course focuses on the maintenance and repair of marine engines and related 

equipment. Students gain hands-on experience with two-stroke and four-stroke cycle engines, outboard 

motors and boating accessories. The curriculum includes training in electrical systems, fuel systems, 

power transfer systems, ignition systems, cooling systems, lubrication systems, drive systems, and boat 

and trailer rigging. Contact: 300 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credits to be Earned by the Student:  2 High School credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo(TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

TSC Fall semester after 

Enrollment Verification 

District will be 

invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $100.00 Student fees for the Marine 

Service Technology career 

dual enrollment programs 

 



 
 

23 

are covered by the CAP 

(Career and Professional 

Education) Grant for the 

25-26 academic year. This 

grant provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills while 

still in high school. 

 

  



 
 

24 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Savary Academy 

Career Dual Enrollment – Veterinary Assisting Course ATE0006 

Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 (5040A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 11:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. (450 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Courses: ATE0006 Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 

Course Description:  

ATE0006: The Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 course prepares students to 

understand the veterinary assistant profession, demonstrate proper use of veterinary science terminology, 

recognize normal and abnormal animal behaviors and how to restrain and control them, identify parts and 

functions of animal systems and various methods on how to identify animals, information related to 

animal control, welfare organizations, and animal-related laws, common husbandry practices and daily 

care of animals, preventative medicine and disease control and teaches students basic employability skills. 

Contact: 450 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $1,201.50 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

TSC Fall semester after 

Enrollment Verification 

District will be 

invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $100.00 Student fees for the 

Veterinary Assisting 

career dual enrollment 

 



 
 

25 

programs are covered by 

the CAP (Career and 

Professional Education) 

Grant for the 25-26 

academic year. This grant 

provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills 

while still in high school. 

 

  



 
 

26 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Savary Academy 

Career Dual Enrollment – Welding Technology Courses PMT0070 

Welder Assistant I & PMT0071 Welder Assistant II (5023A) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  8:30 a.m. – 12 noon (300 clock hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Thursday 

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Advanced Manufacturing Training Center 

Courses: PMT0070 Welder Assistant I; PMT0071 Welder Assistant II 

Course Descriptions:  

PMT0070: The Welder Assistant I course prepares students for entry into the welding industry.  Students 

explore career opportunities and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning 

skills key to the success of working in the welding industry.  Students study workplace safety and 

organization, basic manufacturing processes, metals identification, basic interpretation of welding 

symbols, and oxyfuel gas cutting practices. Contact: 150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count 

toward A.A. or A.S. degree. 

PMT0071: The Welder Assistant 2 course is designed to build on the skills and knowledge students 

learned in Welder Assistant I for entry into the welding industry.  Students explore career opportunities 

and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning skills key to the success of 

working in the welding industry.  Students study drawings and welding symbols, intermediate oxyfuel gas 

cutting practices, plasma arc cutting principles, and basic shielded metal arc welding (SMAW). Contact: 

150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count toward A.A. or A.S. degree. 

industry.   

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective High School credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age  

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

 



 
 

27 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

TSC  Fall semester after 

Enrollment 

Verification District 

will be invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $636.00 TSC  

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

St. John Paul II Catholic School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of St. John Paul II Catholic School, hereinafter 

referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 

end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of St. John Paul II Catholic School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of St. John Paul II Catholic School, Florida, and The 

District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it 

to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 

1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, St. John Paul II Catholic School, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, St. John Paul II Catholic School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Tallavana Christian School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Tallavana Christian School, hereinafter referred 

to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 

31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Tallavana Christian School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 

 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 

 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 

 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 

 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 

 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tallavana Christian School, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallavana Christian School, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Tallavana Christian School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Tree of Life and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Tree of Life, hereinafter referred to as the School 

Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Tree of Life and the President of Tallahassee State 

College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 



 

 
 

2 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 
Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  



 

 
 

3 

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  



 

 
 

4 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 



 

 
 

5 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 



 

 
 

6 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 



 

 
 

7 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 



 

 
 

8 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 
3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 



 

 
 

9 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 



 

 
 

10 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 



 

 
 

11 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 

 
 

12 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 



 

 
 

13 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 



 

 
 

14 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tree of Life, Florida, and The District Board of 

Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by 

their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual 

Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tree of Life, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Tree of Life  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla Christian School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Wakulla Christian School, hereinafter referred to 

as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 

2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla Christian School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.00 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is below 2.00 or completion 

is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  
 

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment Course – 

High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual enrollment must be 

identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with the number of high school 

credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area credit. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 



 
 

9 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 



 
 

10 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 



 
 

11 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

https://tcc.wd1.myworkdayjobs.com/en-US/TCC_External_Career_Site/jobs


 
 

12 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 



 
 

13 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

TSC will provide the instructional materials to the dual enrollment student for each course taken. 

The School Board or student is responsible for obtaining instructional materials through the TSC 

Bookstore. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities 

taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA accommodations 

for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school campus will be 

covered by the School Board. 

 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2024-25 

academic year.   

 

TSC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in 

any term. 

 

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

 

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 
consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 



 
 

14 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

Per the 1009.30, F.S. and Rule 6A-20.0282, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Dual 

Enrollment Scholarship Program, the School Board will not receive an invoice for the 2025-26 

academic year.   

 

However, each district will be required to verify student enrollment within 21 business days of 

TSC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester.  
 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla Christian School, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla Christian School, School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of School, Wakulla Christian School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

16 

APPENDICES 

  



 
 

17 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla Christian School 

Career Dual Enrollment – Commercial Vehicle Driving Career 

Certificate Program (5029A) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. (320 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Transportation and Logistics Center  

Course: TRA0080 Tractor Trailer Truck Driving 

Course Description:  

TRA0080: This course will prepare students for entry into the trucking and logistics industry. Students 

study vehicle safety, accident prevention, operating regulations, cargo handling, documentation 

procedures, pre-trip preparation, vehicle inspection, maintenance, service, control procedures, backing, 

coupling, uncoupling, maneuvering, road and hazardous driving skills, math, communication, 

employability, entrepreneurship, and licensing requirements. This course will focus on broad, transferable 

skills and will stress understanding and demonstration of the following elements of the commercial 

vehicle driving industry: planning, management, finance, technical and product skills, underlying 

principles of technology, labor issues, community issues and health, safety, and environmental issues. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 18 years of age at the start of the program 

• Have a Department of Transportation (DOT) Medical Card (Physical Exam) 

• Have a clean driving record 

• Pass drug screening 

  

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Jessica Griffin (TSC’s Director of Continuing Workforce Education) by August 1, 

2025, for Fall and December 1 for Spring 

• Completed Workforce application 

• Department of Transportation (DOT) Medical Card (Physical Exam) 

• Driving record 

• Drug screening results 



 
 

18 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $854.40 per student (based 

on $2.67 per clock hour) 

TSC Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Instructional Materials Fee $1,714.00 

 

TSC Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Drug Test $80.00 Wakulla Christian School Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

DMV Record $30 Wakulla Christian School Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Physical Exam $100.00 Wakulla Christian School Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Permit Exam $6 (retake $16) Wakulla Christian School Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

 

 

  



 
 

19 

 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla Christian School 

Career Dual Enrollment – Electrical Pre-Apprenticeship Course 

BCV0603 Electrician Helper (8015A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 7:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m. (300 clock hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Courses: BCV0603 Electrician Helper  

Course Description:  

BCV0603: This course provides lecture, demonstration, and hands-on practice in basic electrical skills 

such as basic principles, tools, safety, navigating the NEC, basic math, applied math, circuit theory, 

Ohm’s Law, symbols, conduit bending, and residential requirements. 350 Clock Hours. Additional fee. 

Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 High School Elective Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025, for Fall 

and December 1 for Spring 

 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of 

Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 per 

clock hour) 

TSC Fall – August 

1 

Spring – 

December 1 

Instructional Materials $300.00 Wakulla Christian School  

 



 
 

20 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla Christian School 

Career Dual Enrollment – Landscape & Turf Management Course 

ORH0862 Nursery Workers (5044A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. (300 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Friday 

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Course: ORH0862 Nursery Workers 

Course Description:  

ORH0862: This course provides technical skills and knowledge necessary for nursery workers, including 

aspects of horticulture and the landscape industries. Contact: 300 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not 

count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective High School Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 (based on $2.67 per clock 

hour) 

TSC Fall semester after 

Enrollment 

Verification District 

will be invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $210.00 Student fees for the 

Landscape & Turf 

Management career dual 

enrollment programs are 

covered by the CAP 

 



 
 

21 

(Career and Professional 

Education) Grant for the 

25-26 academic year. This 

grant provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills while 

still in high school. 

 

 

  



 
 

22 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla Christian School 

Career Dual Enrollment – Marine Service Technologies Course 

MTE0003C Marine Rigger (5045A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  12:00 noon – 2:00 p.m. (300 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Course: MTE0003C Marine Rigger 

Course Description:   

MTE0003C: This course focuses on the maintenance and repair of marine engines and related 

equipment. Students gain hands-on experience with two-stroke and four-stroke cycle engines, outboard 

motors and boating accessories. The curriculum includes training in electrical systems, fuel systems, 

power transfer systems, ignition systems, cooling systems, lubrication systems, drive systems, and boat 

and trailer rigging. Contact: 300 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credits to be Earned by the Student:  2 High School credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo(TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

TSC Fall semester after 

Enrollment Verification 

District will be 

invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $100.00 Student fees for the Marine 

Service Technologies 

career dual enrollment 

 



 
 

23 

programs are covered by 

the CAP (Career and 

Professional Education) 

Grant for the 25-26 

academic year. This grant 

provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills while 

still in high school. 

 

  



 
 

24 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla Christian School 

Career Dual Enrollment – Veterinary Assisting Course ATE0006 

Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 (5040A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 11:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. (450 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Courses: ATE0006 Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 

Course Description:  

ATE0006: The Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 course prepares students to 

understand the veterinary assistant profession, demonstrate proper use of veterinary science terminology, 

recognize normal and abnormal animal behaviors and how to restrain and control them, identify parts and 

functions of animal systems and various methods on how to identify animals, information related to 

animal control, welfare organizations, and animal-related laws, common husbandry practices and daily 

care of animals, preventative medicine and disease control and teaches students basic employability skills. 

Contact: 450 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $1,201.50 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

TSC Fall semester after 

Enrollment Verification 

District will be 

invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $100.00 Student fees for the 

Veterinary Assisting 

career dual enrollment 

 



 
 

25 

programs are covered by 

the CAP (Career and 

Professional Education) 

Grant for the 25-26 

academic year. This grant 

provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills 

while still in high school. 

 

  



 
 

26 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla Christian School 

Career Dual Enrollment – Welding Technology Courses PMT0070 

Welder Assistant I & PMT0071 Welder Assistant II (5023A) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  8:30 a.m. – 12 noon (300 clock hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Thursday 

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Advanced Manufacturing Training Center 

Courses: PMT0070 Welder Assistant I; PMT0071 Welder Assistant II 

Course Descriptions:  

PMT0070: The Welder Assistant I course prepares students for entry into the welding industry.  Students 

explore career opportunities and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning 

skills key to the success of working in the welding industry.  Students study workplace safety and 

organization, basic manufacturing processes, metals identification, basic interpretation of welding 

symbols, and oxyfuel gas cutting practices. Contact: 150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count 

toward A.A. or A.S. degree. 

PMT0071: The Welder Assistant 2 course is designed to build on the skills and knowledge students 

learned in Welder Assistant I for entry into the welding industry.  Students explore career opportunities 

and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning skills key to the success of 

working in the welding industry.  Students study drawings and welding symbols, intermediate oxyfuel gas 

cutting practices, plasma arc cutting principles, and basic shielded metal arc welding (SMAW). Contact: 

150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count toward A.A. or A.S. degree. 

industry.   

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective High School credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age  

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

 



 
 

27 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

TSC Fall semester after 

Enrollment 

Verification District 

will be invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $636.00 TSC  

 

 



 

 
 
 

June 16, 2025 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D. 

Vice President and Provost 
 

SUBJECT: Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards and Public Charter 
Schools 

 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
each of the three districts in the Tallahassee State College service district for annual 
approval as required by Florida law. This item also includes agreements with the public 
charter schools in our service district.  
 
Overview and Background 
In compliance with Florida Statute 1007.271(4), the members of the Articulation Councils 
of three districts in the Tallahassee State College service district for annual approval as 
required by Florida law. This item also includes agreements with the public charter 
schools in our service district. 
 
The agreements identify College and School District responsibilities for informing 
students and parents about dual enrollment; they address faculty qualifications for 
teaching; they define college readiness scores and high school and college GPA 
requirements as well as procedures for exceptions; they identify maximum and minimum 
course loads; they specify responsibilities for testing and record keeping; and they 
include other procedures and timelines. 
 
This item includes Gadsden, Leon, and Wakulla county school districts as well as the 
following charter schools: Crossroad Academy, Florida A&M University Developmental 
Research School, Florida State University Schools, Tallahassee Classical School, and 
Tallahassee Collegiate Academy.  
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  



 

Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees, lab, or online course fees. The school 
districts and charter schools pay the standard rate per credit hour, $71.98, for students 
taking courses on TSC's campus, including required instructional materials. This also 
includes online courses. The school districts and charter schools also pay for the cost of 
the instructor if the course is taught at the high school site by a TSC instructor. The 
school districts and charter schools are not charged tuition or instructional materials for 
summer enrollments. Also, school districts and charter schools do not pay tuition for 
students who take courses on the high school campus. 
 
  
 Past Actions by the Board 
 The Board approved these agreements annually. 
 

 Recommended Action 
 Approve the dual enrollment articulation agreements with county school boards and public    
 charter schools. 
 
 

 

 



 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Crossroad Academy and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Crossroad Academy, hereinafter referred to as 

the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 

2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Crossroad Academy and the President of Tallahassee 

State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 
 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.   

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 



 
 

9 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 
and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 



 
 

10 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 



 
 

11 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the 

Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator using 

the Course Adjustment Form.  

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 



 
 

12 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 
enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 



 
 

13 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 
school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on TSC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus, TSC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 
 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 



 
 

14 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will increase the 

number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 

enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 

meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 

progress. TSC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices.  

 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   



 
 

15 

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 
 

16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Crossroad Academy, Florida, and The District Board of 

Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be executed by 

their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual 

Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Crossroad Academy, School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Crossroad Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Florida A&M University Developmental Research School and Tallahassee 

State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Florida A&M University Developmental 

Research School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall 

commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Florida A&M University Developmental Research 

School and the President of Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 
 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.   

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 



 
 

9 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 
and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 



 
 

10 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 



 
 

11 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the 

Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator using 

the Course Adjustment Form.  

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 



 
 

12 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 
enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 



 
 

13 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 
school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on TSC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus, TSC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 
 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 



 
 

14 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will increase the 

number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 

enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 

meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 

progress. TSC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices.  

 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   



 
 

15 

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 
 

16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Florida A&M University Developmental Research 

School, Florida, and The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this 

agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 

accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Michael D. Johnson, Ph.D., Superintendent  

  Florida A&M University Developmental Research School  

 

    
Date  Sarah Price, Ph.D., Dean 

  Florida A&M University, College of Education 

  

_________________  _____________________________________________________ 

Date  Allyson Watson, Ph.D., Vice President for Academic Affairs 

  Florida A&M University 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Florida State University School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Florida State University School, hereinafter 

referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 

end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Florida State Univerity School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.   

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 



 

 
9 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 
and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 



 

 
10 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 



 

 
11 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the 

Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator using 

the Course Adjustment Form.  

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 



 

 
12 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 
enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 



 

 
13 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 
school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on TSC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus, TSC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 
 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 



 

 
14 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will increase the 

number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 

enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 

meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 

progress. TSC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices.  

 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   



 

 
15 

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Florida State University School, Florida, and The 

District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it 

to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 

1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 
 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    

Date  Chair, Florida State University Schools, School Board 

 

    

Date  Superintendent, Florida State University Schools  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Gadsden County Schools and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Gadsden County Schools, hereinafter referred to 

as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 

2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Gadsden County Schools and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 
 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

 

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 



 

 
4 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 



 

 
5 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System.  

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 



 

 
6 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in Public 

High School Course 

Communications: 



 

 
7 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course 

for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math 

for College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for 

College Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 

 

 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA.  

 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may enroll in up to 12 credit hours before demonstrating college-

readiness for mathematics. To continue enrollment beyond 12 credit hours, students must meet 

one of the measures for mathematics as outlined in Table 1 to demonstrate college-readiness.  

 

Students who graduate from high school before completing the postsecondary course may not 

register for it through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 



 

 
8 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.  

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

   Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC   

   GPA of 3.0.  

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, apart from remedial courses and 

physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count toward high 

school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this agreement. 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.”  

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 



 

 
9 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 



 

 
10 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Last Day for schools to submit all paperwork 

and test scores (as necessary) for enrollment 

in Fall 2025 semester. This includes 

registration for courses on the high school 

campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 24, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 2026. 

Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 2025  Deadline for schools to submit paperwork for 

Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) for 

enrollment in Summer 2026 June Express 

session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 



 

 
11 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 



 

 
12 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 
5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 



 

 
13 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on TSC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus, TSC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 

 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will increase the 

number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 

enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 

meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 

progress. TSC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 



 

 
14 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices.  

 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Gadsden County Schools, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Gadsden County School Board  

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Gadsden County Schools  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Leon County Schools and Tallahassee State College 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 

Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, 

hereinafter referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Leon County, hereinafter 

referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing 

and shall end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following: Committee members from 

the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  

Committee members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 

party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 

initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 

signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Leon County and the President 

of Tallahassee State College. 

 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  High 

school counselors will review, with the student, criteria for participation in the dual enrollment 

program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 



 

 2 

 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours per semester) in courses that are creditable toward the high school 

diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree.   Both the high school and TSC must approve 

early admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

Additionally, TSC and School Board will collaborate on the offering of Career and Technical 

Education (CTE) dual enrollment AS degree pathways and ensure seamless credit transfer and 

course articulation for students enrolled in CTE AS degree programs. 



 

 3 

 

Both parties agree to jointly review and update the list of approved CTE programs for dual 

enrollment. Priority will be given to including programs that lead to industry-recognized 

credentials and culminate in an AS degree.  

    

The School Board and College will develop strategies to promote awareness of CTE dual 

enrollment opportunities, particularly those leading to AS degrees. Strategies may include joint 

presentations at high schools, career fairs, and workshops for students, parents, and counselors.  

 

Online resources and informational campaigns will be established to showcase the benefits of 

CTE dual enrollment AS Programs. 

 

Both parties agree to establish a process for monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of this 

effort in expanding access to CTE dual enrollment AS degree programs. 

 

Data will be collected on student participation, credit transfer rates, and program completion 

rates. Regular meetings will be conducted to assess progress and discuss areas for improvement. 

 

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

 



 

 4 

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 



 

 5 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System.  

 



 

 6 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 



 

 7 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English 

course for AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE 

programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, 

Math for College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for 

College Statistics, Probability and 

Statistics, 

B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-

Calculus, Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 



 

 8 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 

dual enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA.  

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may enroll in up to 12 credit hours before demonstrating college-

readiness for mathematics. To continue enrollment beyond 12 credit hours, students must meet 

one of the measures for mathematics as outlined in Table 1 to demonstrate college-readiness.  

 

Students who graduate from high school before completing the postsecondary course may not 

register for it through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is between 51 – 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 

period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.  

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior or junior and 

have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC 

GPA of 3.0 or higher. 



 

 9 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

   Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC   

   GPA of 3.0.  

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, apart from remedial courses and 

physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count toward high 

school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this agreement. 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.”  

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college 

transcript and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations using the course syllabus provided to each student in each 

college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 



 

 10 

 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 

point averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the GPA Exceptions for Initial Eligibility Request 

Form, by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75 – 2.99 may be 

allowed to enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student 

has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of 

Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will 

require satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the district and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee.  

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression criteria moving 

forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

  

Students must complete their registration form with their high school counselor.  The form must 

be completed with all the required information about course reference numbers as well as 

alternate options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 11 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools:  

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

High school 



 

 12 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who plan to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines (Florida 

Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   

 

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   



 

 13 

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate 

Academic Dean or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC 

and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

It is the responsibility of the high school to notify TSC’s Academic Affairs designee of all 

courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must complete the 

appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty 

availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the student's taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 

before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 

performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students with a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

interested in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school counselors to 

discuss the program's eligibility requirements.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 



 

 14 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. At 

the fifth and ninth week of each fall and spring term, TSC will provide early alert reports to a 

designee of the School Board. The report will include students earning below a 75% average in 

dual enrollment courses. Additionally, attendance records will be included in the reporting.  

 

The School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that 

students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by TSC) when posting it to the high school 

transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 

student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 

TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

Standard Tuition Rate 



 

 15 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will maintain  

counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual enrollment 

students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors 

and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TSC will 

also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

Instructional Costs 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 



 

 16 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 

who register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will ensure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodation for those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodation.   

TSC provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, Note-

taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

  



 

 17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Leon County, Florida and The District Board 

of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 

1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Leon County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Leon County School District 

 

  



 

 18 

APPENDICES 

  

 



 

 19 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College & Leon County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Emergency Medical Technician Applied 

Technology Diploma Program (B312) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  100 minutes (2 class periods) 

Class days:  Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, and Friday (clinical days may include 

Saturday during the Spring semester) 

Class location:  Godby High School 

Courses: EMS1119 – Emergency Medical Technician Lecture; EMS1119L Emergency Medical 

Technician Lab; EMS 1431L Emergency Medical Technician Clinical  

Course Descriptions:  

EMS1119 (7 credits) – This course introduces the role of the emergency medical technician. It is 

designed to teach students to employ critical thinking skills to assess a patient scenario, create a 

plan of care and implement the plan. Topics include public health, anatomy and physiology, 

medical terminology, patient assessment, airway management, trauma, toxicological and 

environmental emergencies, submersion incidents, and infection control. 

EMS1119L (2 credits) – This course involves the laboratory application of concepts and 

procedures studied in EMS1119.  

EMS1431L (3 credits) – This course provides clinical application of concepts and procedures 

studied in EMS1119 and EMS1119L. Clinical: At least 124 clock hours per semester. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student: 12 elective credits  

 

Upon successful program completion and turning 18, students can sit for the EMT certification 

exam through the National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians Certification. 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• Godby High School Senior 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Attend Interest Meetings and Interviews (End of April) 

• Pass a Level 2 background check. 

• Pass a Drug-Screening 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TCC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

 



 

 20 

Documents are due to the Academic Affairs Office by August 15, 2025 

• Immunization Records  

• TB skin test  

• Flu Shot 

• Background check 

• Drug Screening  

• Signed permission form (due in April of the student’s junior year) 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of 

Payment 

Tuition:  $863.76 per student (based on $71.98 

per credit hour) 

No cost; courses are 

occurring on the high 

school campus 

N/A 

Instructor: $12,000.00  TSC  N/A 

Level 2 Background Check and Drug Screening:  

$150 per student  

 

TSC  N/A 

Student Uniforms:  $343 per student (Polo shirt, 

pants, belt, boots, penlight, stethoscope, safety 

vest, scrubs top and bottom) 

School District August 29, 

2025 

National Registry of Emergency Medical 

Technicians Certification Examination: $104 per 

student   

TSC  N/A 

 

 

 

  



 

 21 

 

 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College’s  

Florida Public Safety Institute & Leon County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Firefighter I Course (FFP 0030) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2024 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: (2) 50-minute class periods (191 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, and Friday (two Saturday meetings are 

required) 

Class location:  Leon High School 

Course: FFP 0030 – Firefighter I 

Course Description: This course covers science of fire, breathing apparatus, ladders, hose, 

nozzles and fire streams. The program also includes first responder medical and awareness-level 

hazardous material training. Upon successful completion of the course, and a written 

examination, the student will receive a certificate of competency from the Bureau of Fire 

Standards and training as a volunteer firefighter. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:   

No high school credits are earned by the student 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Pass a Level 2 background check. 

• Leon High School Senior 

• Attend Interest Meetings and Interviews (beginning April 15 and culminating by May 17) 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TCC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TCC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TCC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Kermit Washington by August 1, 2025 

• Completed FPSI application 

• Copy of Birth Certificate 

• Copy of Social Security Card 

• Signed permission form 

 

 



 

 22 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of 

Payment 

Tuition:  $509.97 per student (based on $2.67 per 

clock hour) 

No cost; courses are 

occurring on the high 

school campus 

Fall semester 

after 

Enrollment 

Verification 

District will 

be invoiced 

 

Instructor: $6,000.00 TSC is covering the cost  

Student Uniforms:  T-shirt, BDU pants, boots, 

gloves, protective gear 

TSC is covering the cost 

with grant allocation 

 

 

 

 



 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Tallahassee Classical School and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Tallahassee Classical School, hereinafter referred 

to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 

31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Tallahassee Classical School and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 
 

4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 
 

5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 
 

7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 
 

8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.   

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 



 
 

9 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 
and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 



 
 

10 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 



 
 

11 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the 

Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator using 

the Course Adjustment Form.  

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 



 
 

12 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 
enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 



 
 

13 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 
school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on TSC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus, TSC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 
 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 



 
 

14 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will increase the 

number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 

enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 

meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 

progress. TSC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices.  

 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   



 
 

15 

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 
 

16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tallahassee Classical School, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee Classical School, Board of Trustees 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Tallahassee Classical School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Tallahassee Collegiate Academy and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Tallahassee Collegiate Academy, hereinafter 

referred to as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall 

end July 31, 2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Tallahassee Collegiate Academy and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

Students who withdraw from a course after drop/add period are required to meet with counselor 

and parent/guardian before paperwork will be provided.  

 

Students planning to continue dual enrollment must do the following:  

 

• Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss course options and scheduling.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your guidance 

counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high school 

graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the courses 

on the permission to register form and signs the form. 

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator, or you can bring them to your meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During your meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be registered for 

your TSC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 



 

 
4 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

 

 

 



 

 
5 

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System 

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
6 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 



 

 
7 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English 

Language & Literature or Any English course for 

AP, IB, or Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 
 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA. 

 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may use alternative placement methods for determining math 

eligibility as outlined in Table 1.  

 



 

 
8 

Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary course 

may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 
 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.   

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC 

GPA of 3.0. 

 

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

 

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of remedial 

courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count 

toward high school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this 

agreement. 

 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 



 

 
9 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.” 

 

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 
and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 



 

 
10 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Deadline for district to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Fall 2025 semester. This 

includes registration for courses on the 

high school campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 22, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

   October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 

2026. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 20245  Deadline for district to submit paperwork 

for Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 



 

 
11 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) 

for enrollment in Summer 2026 June 

Express session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the 

Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator using 

the Course Adjustment Form.  

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 



 

 
12 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 

5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 
enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 



 

 
13 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 
school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on TSC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus, TSC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 
 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 



 

 
14 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will increase the 

number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 

enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 

meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 

progress. TSC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 
and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices.  

 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   



 

 
15 

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tallahassee Collegiate Academy, Florida, and The 

District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it 

to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 

1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 
 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    

Date  Chair, Tallahassee Collegiate Academy, School Board 

 

    

Date  Superintendent, Tallahassee Collegiate Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 
17 

APPENDIX 

  



 

 
18 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Tallahassee Collegiate Academy 

Career Dual Enrollment – Welding Technology Career Certificate 

Program (5023A) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  8:30 a.m. – 2:30 p.m. (1,050 clock hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Thursday 

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Advanced Manufacturing Training Center 

Courses: PMT0070 Welder Assistant I; PMT0071 Welder Assistant II; PMT0072 Welder, SMAW 1; 

PMT0073 Welder, SMAW 2; PMT0074 Welder 

Course Descriptions:  

PMT0070: The Welder Assistant I course prepares students for entry into the welding industry.  Students 

explore career opportunities and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning 

skills key to the success of working in the welding industry.  Students study workplace safety and 

organization, basic manufacturing processes, metals identification, basic interpretation of welding 

symbols, and oxyfuel gas cutting practices. Contact: 150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count 

toward A.A. or A.S. degree. One high school elective credit 

PMT0071: The Welder Assistant 2 course is designed to build on the skills and knowledge students 

learned in Welder Assistant I for entry into the welding industry.  Students explore career opportunities 

and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning skills key to the success of 

working in the welding industry.  Students study drawings and welding symbols, intermediate oxyfuel gas 

cutting practices, plasma arc cutting principles, and basic shielded metal arc welding (SMAW). Contact: 

150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count toward A.A. or A.S. degree. One high school elective 

credit 

PMT0072: The Welder SMAW 1 course prepares students for entry into the welding industry as a basic 

Shielded Metal Arc Welder.  Students explore career opportunities and requirements of a professional 

welder.  Content emphasizes beginning skills key to the success of working in the welding 

industry.  Students study basic shielded metal arc welding (SMAW), Carbon Arc Gouging (GAC) 

principles, and visual examination skills. Contact: 150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count toward 

A.A. or A.S. degree. One high school elective credit 

PMT0073: The Welder SMAW 2 course is designed to build on the skills and knowledge students 

learned in Welder SMAW 1 for entry into welding industry as a basic Shielded Metal Arc 

Welder.  Students explore career opportunities and requirements of a professional welder.  Content 

emphasizes beginning skills key to the success of working in the welding industry.  Students study 

employability and welding careers, and intermediate shielded metal arc welding (SMAW). Contact: 150 

clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count toward A.A. or A.S. degree. One high school elective credit 

PMT0074: The Welder course builds on the skills and knowledge students learned in the Welder 

Assistant and Welder SMAW courses.  Students explore career opportunities and requirements 

of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes skills key to the success of working in the welding 

industry.  Students study basic and intermediate Gas Metal Arc Welding (GMAW), basic and 



 

 
19 

intermediate Flux-Core Arc Welding (FCAW), basic and intermediate Gas Tungsten Arc 

Welding (GTAW), and a basic understanding of pipe welding. Contact: 450 clock hours. 

Additional fee. Does not count toward A.A. or A.S. degree. Three high school elective credits 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  7 Elective High School credits for the entire 

program. 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age  

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $2,803 per student (based on $2.67 per 

clock hour) 

Tallahassee Collegiate 

Academy 

Fall and Spring 

semesters after 

enrollment 

verification, dstrict 

will be invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $2,808  Tallahassee Collegiate 

Academy 

Fall and pring 

semesters after 

enrollment 

verification, district 

will be invoiced 

 

 

 



 

 
 

1 

2025 – 2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  

Wakulla County Schools and Tallahassee State College 

 

Introduction 

The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida Statutes, 

is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee State College, hereinafter 

referred to as TSC, and the District School Board of Wakulla County Schools, hereinafter referred to 

as the School Board. The term of this agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 

2026.  

 

The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from the 

School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  Committee 

members from TSC will be appointed by the President of TSC or designee. 

 

Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other party 

fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the 

termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication signed by the 

Superintendent of the District School Board of Gasden County Schools and the President of 

Tallahassee State College. 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  

 

This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TSC and the School Board regarding the 

Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term set forth above.   

 

II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the availability of 

the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses through educational 

planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual enrollment through a 

variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to meet with their high school 

guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment.  

High school guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the dual 

enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and parents on TSC’s Dual 

Enrollment website. 

 

It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child to 

participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

2 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in dual 

enrollment 

 

Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is the 

enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable toward high 

school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”.  A student 

who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high school diploma 

may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  Physical education skills courses and college 

preparatory instruction are not eligible for dual enrollment. 

 

Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be exempt 

from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled as dual 

enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to participate in both 

high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation and other extracurricular 

activities. Participation in all college activities must be approved by the Vice President for 

Student Affairs. 
 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is available upon request.  Eligible 

courses may be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the 

agreement. 

 

College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through distance 

learning. 

 

Early Admission Dual Enrollment 

Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students 

enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit hours and 

maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and 

the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be exempt from the payment 

of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high school and TSC must approve Early 

Admission for a high school student each semester. 

 

Career Dual Enrollment 

Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high school 

diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career dual 

enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a program.   

Both clock hour and college credit courses and programs must lead toward an approved industry 

certification from an Industry Certification Funding List in s. 1008.44, F.S. 

 

For 2025-2026, career dual enrollment through TSC is available.  

 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to participate 

in the dual enrollment program 

 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

Students planning to participate in dual enrollment must do the following:  

• Confirm they have a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 

average (GPA) and meets the testing requirements. 



 

 
 

3 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)  

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

 

Application Process for Continuing Dual Enrollment Students 

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss eligibility (see Section V) and testing 

options.  

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with your counselor.  Counselors will help 

students choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  

Counselors will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor. 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment 

Advisor.  Documents can be emailed to the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor or brought to 

the meeting. 

o Permission to register form 

• During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered 

for TSC courses that are listed on their Permission to Register Form.   

 

Eligibility Requirements for Early Admission Dual Enrollment  

 Students must be a high school senior, have a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school 

GPA and meet the testing requirements outlined on page 7-9.  

 

TSC Application process for Early Admission Dual Enrollment Students 

   Students planning to apply for early admission must do the following:  

• Meet with high school counselor to discuss testing options.  

• Complete TSC Online Application. 

• Complete the Permission to Register Form with counselor. Counselors will help students 

choose courses that will count towards high school graduation requirements.  Counselors 

will list the courses on the permission to register form and sign the form.  

• Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with counselor.  

• Schedule a meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 



 

 
 

4 

• Submit the documents below prior to or during the meeting with the TSC Dual 

Enrollment Coordinator. Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

or brought to the meeting. 

o Copy of test scores  

o Permission to register form 

o Permission for early admission form 

o High school transcript (please use the FASTER system)   

During the meeting with the TSC Dual Enrollment Advisor, students will be registered for the 

TSC courses that are listed on the Permission to Register Form.  The TSC Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator is the only person allowed to register students for courses 

Maximum Course Loads 

Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each semester. All 

college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 

Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 credit 

hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school credit 

Eligibility Requirements for Career Dual Enrollment 

   Students must have a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average    

   (GPA) and meet testing requirements if required for specific programs. 

 

Eligibility Requirements to Continue Career Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 2.0 unweighted cumulative high school GPA, a minimum 2.0 

TSC GPA as well as a successful dual enrollment course completion rate of 75% (C or better).   

 

Schedule Changes  

Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and deadlines 

published by TSC.  

 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), during drop/add period, students must provide a written request 

from the high school counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before 

the Add/Drop deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator 

using the Course Adjustment Form.   

Withdrawing from Classes  

After the drop/add period, Requests are considered by the district in extenuating 

circumstances.  Students provide request and documentation to school counselor for district 

review.  School Counselor and TSC Dual Enrollment Coordinator will be notified of the 

decision.  The course withdrawal form will then be initiated by the school designee.  

 

Summer Enrollment 

Students are eligible to enroll in summer courses during June Express. 



 

 
 

5 

Graduating high school seniors are not eligible to participate in dual enrollment during the 

summer.  Graduating seniors who enroll in summer classes will be categorized as degree seeking 

college students and responsible for all instructional materials, tuition and fees assessed. 

 

Weighting of Dual Enrollment Course Grades 

For districts that use a weighted grading system, s. 1007.271(8), F.S., states that “school districts 

and Florida College System institutions must weigh dual enrollment courses the same as 

advanced placement, International Baccalaureate, and Advance International Certificate of 

Education courses when grade point averages are calculated. Alternative grade calculation or 

weighting systems that discriminate against dual enrollment courses are prohibited.” 

 

Grade Distribution  

All grades will be reported at the conclusion of each term and accessible by the student through 

logging into their TSC Workday account, no more than two days after the grade submission 

deadline passes. Final grades will not be reported in the Canvas Learning Management System.  

 

Dual Enrollment Eligibility Through Testing 

Students may demonstrate college readiness and qualify for dual enrollment by using a 

combination of the following, Reading, Writing, and Mathematics qualifying measures.  

 

High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if students 

plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  

 

It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  TSC will 

work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special circumstances. 

 

Tests and Assessments 

(A score that meets or exceeds the standard score on any one of the assessments shall be accepted as 

demonstration of readiness for college-level work. TSC shall accept scores on a Florida public high school 

transcript in addition to official score reports from the issuing entity listed as an official record.) All scores 

must be less than 2 years old. 

P.E.R.T.  

Reading 106 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

SAT, The College Board 

Reading 24  

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 Writing and Language 25 

Mathematics 24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

Mathematics 26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital SAT, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Math Section 
480-520 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ACT with Writing or ACT, Inc. 

Reading 19 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 



 

 
 

6 

Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Next-Generation ACCUPLACER, The College Board (Since August 2022) 

Reading 256 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Writing 253 

QAS (Quantitative 

Reasoning, Algebra, Stats) 

261-275 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

276 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Classic Learning Test (CLT) 

Sum of the Verbal 

Reasoning and 

Grammar/Writing 

Sections 

38 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Quantitative Reasoning 

Section 

16-18 MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131, MAC 1105C 

19 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT 10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Reading 24 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 25 

Mathematics 
24-26 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

26.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Digital PSAT/NMSQT and PSAT10, The College Board Since June 2023 

Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing Section 

490 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics Section 
480-529 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

530 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

PreACT  

Reading 22 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

English 18 

Mathematics 22 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

End-of-Course Assessments 

Algebra I or Geometry 4 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

General Education Development (GED) Test 

Reading through 

Language Arts 

165 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematical Reasoning 
165-174 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

175 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

Test Assessing Secondary Completion (TASC) 

Language Arts Reading 580 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 560 and 6 on 

Essay 

ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
560 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

700 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) 

Language Arts Reading 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Language Arts Writing 15 ENC 1101C, ENC 1101 

Mathematics 
15 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

18 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

ALEKS PPL 

Mathematics 
30-45 MAC 1105C, MAT 1033, MGF 1130, MGF 1131 

46 MAC 1105, STA 2023 

High School Course Equivalency 

(Performance in public high school coursework includes an unweighted GPA of 3.0 or better plus 

achievement of minimum course grade as indicated in the chart below.) 

TSC Course High School Course Minimum Grade in  

Public High School Course 

Communications: 



 

 
 

7 

ENC 1101C English 4 or English 4 Honors or English Language 

& Literature 
B 

ENC 1101 English 4 or English 4 Honors or English Language 

& Literature or Any English course for AP, IB, or 

Cambridge/AICE programs 

B 

Mathematics: 

MAT 1033, 

MAC 1105C 

Geometry, Algebra I, Algebra I Honors, Math for 

College Algebra 

 

B 

MGF 1130,  

MGF 1131,  

Math for College Liberal Arts, Math for College 

Statistics, Probability and Statistics, 
B 

MAC 1105, STA 

2023 

 

Algebra II, Algebra II Honors, Pre-Calculus, 

Calculus, AICE, AP, IB 
 

B 

 

 

 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the dual 

enrollment program 

 

The statutory eligibility requirements for academic college credit dual enrollment include: 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework through scores 

on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education Rule 6A-10.0315). The 

statutory eligibility requirements for career dual enrollment Career Certificate: 2.0 unweighted 

GPA.  

 

TSC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level Mathematics 

and/or English and Reading.  

 

Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in the dual 

enrollment program. Students may enroll in up to 12 credit hours before demonstrating college-

readiness for mathematics. To continue enrollment beyond 12 credit hours, students must meet 

one of the measures for mathematics as outlined in Table 1 to demonstrate college-readiness.  

 

Students who graduate from high school before completing the postsecondary course may not 

register for it through dual enrollment.  

 

Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they are 

disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TSC’s Student Handbook. 

Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 

Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point average.  

Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the maintenance of a 3.0 

unweighted high school GPA.  

 

Students, who withdraw from a course after drop/add period, or earn a “D/F” in any dual 

enrollment course, are required to meet with the counselor and parent/guardian before enrollment 

paperwork will be provided for subsequent semester. 

 



 

 
 

8 

Additionally, the TSC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain a 2.25 

TSC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C or better).  

Students may be given a one semester grace period if the TSC GPA is between a 2.00 and 2.24 

GPA or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace period.  

Students utilizing a grace period may be subject to a reduced dual enrollment course load by one 

course in an effort to ensure successful matriculation at the post-secondary level.  

Early Admission Eligibility 

Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and have an 

unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have a TSC GPA of 

3.0 or higher. 

 

Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  

   Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a TSC   

   GPA of 3.0.  

 

VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment courses 

 

College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation Coordinating 

Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High School Subject Area 

Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is available at 

https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/AcademicList.pdf.  Eligible courses may 

be taken in any format that TSC offers them unless otherwise specified in the Agreement.  

Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, apart from remedial courses and 

physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment credit and count toward high 

school graduation, including electives provided these courses are specified in this agreement. 

For college credit programs, postsecondary courses taken through dual enrollment for three 

credits or more that are part of a postsecondary career/technical program of study (College Credit 

Certificate, Applied Technology Diploma, Associate in Applied Science, Associate of Science) 

shall be awarded at least 0.5 elective credits toward high school graduation.  

 

Section 1003.437, F.S., specifies that “For the purposes of class ranking, district school boards 

may exercise a weighted grading system pursuant to s. 1007.271.”  

 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level course 

expectations 

 

Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of 

non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment courses offered on the 

high school campus. Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college courses 

and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater than in high school courses. 

In addition, dual enrollment courses become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript 

and are calculated into the student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  

 



 

 
 

9 

It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and parents about 

the college-level expectations.  TSC will inform students and parents of college-level course 

expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TSC will also inform students and parents of 

college-level course expectations through the use of the course syllabus which is given to each 

student in each college-level course at the beginning of each semester. 

 

 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade point 

averages on an individual student basis  

 

Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual student basis 

if both parties agree. 

 

Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 

Upon recommendation and the submission of the Exceptions to High School GPA form, by the 

principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA of 2.75-2.99 may be allowed to enroll 

for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided that the student has shown 

evidence of ability to do advanced level work through successful completion of Advanced 

Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require 

satisfactory progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this 

agreement and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B.”  

Documentation must be provided to TSC’s Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed on a 

case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TSC’s Academic Affairs 

designee. 

 

TSC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned to TSC 

before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the exception must 

be stated on the form. 

 

Students will be given a one-semester grace period during which a review will determine 

continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high school 

matriculation. Students granted eligibility under the GPA exception must meet all progression 

criteria moving forward to continue enrollment; the allowable grace period was used for initial 

eligibility. 

 

 

IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 

 

Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance counselor.  The 

form must be completed with all the required information about course section numbers as well 

as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given to TSC’s Dual Enrollment 

Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are available at the time the form is 

received. The following deadlines are established for TSC and may differ from internal deadlines 

of the Board. 

 



 

 
 

10 

 

2025-2026 Deadlines for High Schools: 

 

Due Date Activity Responsible Party 

August 11, 2025 Last Day for schools to submit all paperwork 

and test scores (as necessary) for enrollment 

in Fall 2025 semester. This includes 

registration for courses on the high school 

campus. 

High school 

August 18, 2025 TSC First Day of Class  

August 24, 2025 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  October 28, 2025 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

November 10, 2025 Deadline to make changes to course 

offerings at the high school for Spring 2026. 

Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

November 28, 2025 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

December 1, 2025  Deadline for schools to submit paperwork for 

Spring 2026 (applications, test scores, 

permission to register forms) 

High school 

December 8, 2025 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

December 9, 2025 TSC Transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

TSC 

January 5, 2026 TSC First Day of Class 
 

January 11, 2026 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 

students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 9, 2026 Deadline to Submit “Course Request for 

Dual Enrollment” Form for 2025-2026. 

High school 

March 22, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 26, 2026 TSC Last Day of Class 
 

May 3, 2026 Deadline to submit grades to TSC High school 

May 4, 2026 TSC transcripts will be delivered to high 

schools 

   TSC 

June 12, 2026 (Noon)  Last Day for students to submit all 

paperwork and test scores (as necessary) for 

enrollment in Summer 2026 June Express 

session  

High school 

July 17, 2026 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 

Summer 2026 June Express session (use 

withdrawal form) 

High school 

 



 

 
 

11 

Adding and Dropping Classes  

To add or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from the high school 

guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to add or drop before the Add/Drop 

deadline. The request must be submitted to TSC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 

 

 

X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual enrollment 

courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 

 

XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook of the 

postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 

Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual enrollment 

instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual enrollment faculty. 

These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of Standards, which was 

codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 

 

Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school campuses 

must complete a TSC Adjunct Faculty Application and all other procedures required by TSC’s 

Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended for hire by the 

appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the following guidelines 

(Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

 

Meet the qualifications required by TSC as identified in the TSC Faculty Credentials Manual. 

The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of instruction. TSC 

requires compliance with these qualifications.   
  

1. Provide TSC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the division dean or 

associate dean of the postsecondary institution before the start of each term. The 

content of each syllabus must meet the same standards required for all college-level 

courses offered at TSC and must be approved by the appropriate TSC academic 

division.   

3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TSC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty members) 

stated in TSC's student handbook.  

 

Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same competencies 

required for courses taught on the TSC campus.  To ensure equivalent rigor with courses taught 

at TSC, the high school instructor will provide a comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course 

assessment and a series of assessments of all expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean 

or designee.  The completed and scored assessments must be returned to TSC and held for one 

year (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (6a)). 

 



 

 
 

12 

It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TSC’s Academic 

Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  Each high school must 

complete the appropriate form for each course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need 

and faculty availability, TSC will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.   

 

Each instructor is responsible for checking their online class rosters every day to ensure the 

appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the roster, the instructor should 

immediately notify their academic dean. The academic dean should notify TSC’s dual enrollment 

coordinator or Academic Affairs designee. 

 

Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 

permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per Section 

1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on enrollment in a 

joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a high school campus may 

not be combined with any non-college credit high school course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), 

Florida Statutes. 
5.  

Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 

documentation as the students taking courses on TSC’s main campus. 

 

 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility before 

participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student performance while 

participating in the dual enrollment program 

 

The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for the dual 

enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade point average and 

who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be referred to their high school 

guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements for the program.  

 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  

    their obligation to complete an online TSC application. 

 

The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet the 

requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for advising 

students about Bright Futures. 

 

It is TSC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TSC’s dual enrollment courses. The 

School Board and TSC should exchange student transcripts in order to make sure that students 

are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 

 

TSC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board is 

prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to the high 

school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of student 

grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 

TSC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 

 

 



 

 
 

13 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and TSC 

 

Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and laboratory 

fees.   

 

Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 

 

Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board during both the Fall and Spring 

semester.  Textbooks will be provided by TSC during the Summer terms.  Textbooks purchased 

by the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 

1007.271 (17), F.S. TSC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and materials to 

the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with 

disabilities taking courses on TSC’s campus will be covered by TSC.  The costs of ADA 

accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking courses on the high school 

campus will be covered by the School Board. 

 

Standard Tuition Rate 

Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per credit 

hour to TSC for instruction taking place on TSC’s campus for dual enrolled students.  The 

approved standard tuition for FY 2024-2025 is $71.98. The rate will be charged for courses 

taking place on TSC’s main campus, TSC’s educational centers, and distance learning courses.   

TSC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2025 dual enrollment students. TSC 

also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 1007.271(4) in any 

term. 

 

TSC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TSC will promote dual 

enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of services associated with the 

dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of tuition to TSC will increase the 

number of counselors available to the dual enrollment program in order to recruit more dual 

enrollment students and to help prepare students for transition to college, to counsel students in 

meta-majors and programs of study, and to track and provide feedback to students on their 

progress. TSC will also provide high school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   

 

Instructional Costs 

 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual enrollment 

occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school sites by college 

faculty, the School Board must reimburse TSC for the costs associated with the proportion of 

salary and benefits.  

TSC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered at the 

high school. Schools can assist TSC by recommending qualified School Board instructors for 

consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high school. 

TSC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TSC courses 

and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its regular adjunct 

program. Therefore, TSC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on the high school site by 

TSC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School Board will be considered a normal 

part of TSC’s obligation to its faculty for training and mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 

 

Invoicing for Financial Obligations 

 

TSC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of TSC’s 

Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 



 

 
 

14 

 

A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 

student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has occurred, 

there will be no changes to the invoices.  

 

XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 

It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for enrollment 

 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment articulation 

agreement include services and resource that are available to students with disabilities who 

register for dual enrollment.   

 

Tallahassee State College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable by, all 

qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by providing 

reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the proper 

documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s home school 

will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary accommodations.   

 

The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time testing, 

Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, 

Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language interpreters, and Spelling 

accommodations.   

 
 

  



 

 
 

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla County Schools, Florida, and The District 

Board of Trustees, Tallahassee State College, Florida, have adopted this agreement and caused it to be 

executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 1007.271, 

F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee State College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee State College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla County Schools Board of Trustees 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Wakulla County Schools  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 
 

16 

APPENDICES 

  



 

 
 

17 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Commercial Vehicle Driving Career 

Certificate Program (5029A) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. (320 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Transportation and Logistics Center  

Course: TRA0080 Tractor Trailer Truck Driving 

Course Description:  

TRA0080: This course will prepare students for entry into the trucking and logistics industry. Students 

study vehicle safety, accident prevention, operating regulations, cargo handling, documentation 

procedures, pre-trip preparation, vehicle inspection, maintenance, service, control procedures, backing, 

coupling, uncoupling, maneuvering, road and hazardous driving skills, math, communication, 

employability, entrepreneurship, and licensing requirements. This course will focus on broad, transferable 

skills and will stress understanding and demonstration of the following elements of the commercial 

vehicle driving industry: planning, management, finance, technical and product skills, underlying 

principles of technology, labor issues, community issues and health, safety, and environmental issues. 

Contact: 320 Clock Hours. Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 18 years of age at the start of the program 

• Have a Department of Transportation (DOT) Medical Card (Physical Exam) 

• Have a clean driving record 

• Pass drug screening 

  

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Jessica Griffin (TSC’s Director of Continuing Workforce Education) by August 1, 

2025, for Fall and December 1 for Spring 

• Completed Workforce application 

• Department of Transportation (DOT) Medical Card (Physical Exam) 

• Driving record 



 

 
 

18 

• Drug screening results 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $854.40 per student (based 

on $2.67 per clock hour) 

School District  Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Instructional Materials Fee $1,714.00 

 

School District Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Drug Test $80.00 School District Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

DMV Record $30 School District Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Physical Exam $100.00 School District Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

Permit Exam $6 (retake $16) School District Fall – August 1 

Spring – December 1 

 

 

  



 

 
 

19 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Electrical Pre-Apprenticeship Course 

BCV0603 Electrician Helper (8015A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 7:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m. (300 clock hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Courses: BCV0603 Electrician Helper  

Course Description:  

BCV0603: This course provides lecture, demonstration, and hands-on practice in basic electrical skills 

such as basic principles, tools, safety, navigating the NEC, basic math, applied math, circuit theory, 

Ohm’s Law, symbols, conduit bending, and residential requirements. Contact: 300 Clock Hours. 

Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 High School Elective Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025, for Fall 

and December 1 for Spring 

 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of 

Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 per 

clock hour) 

School District Fall – August 

1 

Spring – 

December 1 

Instructional Materials $300.00 School District  

 

 



 

 
 

20 

  



 

 
 

21 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Landscape & Turf Management Course 

ORH0862 Nursery Workers (5044A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. (300 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Friday 

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Course: ORH0862 Nursery Workers 

Course Description:  

ORH0862: This course provides technical skills and knowledge necessary for nursery workers, including 

aspects of horticulture and the landscape industries. Contact: 300 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not 

count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective High School Credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 (based on $2.67 per clock 

hour) 

School District Fall semester after 

Enrollment 

Verification District 

will be invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $210.00 Student fees for the 

Landscape & Turf 

Management career dual 

enrollment programs are 
covered by the CAP 

(Career and Professional 

 



 

 
 

22 

Education) Grant for the 

25-26 academic year. This 

grant provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills while 

still in high school. 

 

 

  



 

 
 

23 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Marine Service Technologies Course 

MTE0003C Marine Rigger (5045A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  12:00 noon – 2:00 p.m. (300 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Course: MTE0003C Marine Rigger 

Course Description:   

MTE0003C: This course focuses on the maintenance and repair of marine engines and related 

equipment. Students gain hands-on experience with two-stroke and four-stroke cycle engines, outboard 

motors and boating accessories. The curriculum includes training in electrical systems, fuel systems, 

power transfer systems, ignition systems, cooling systems, lubrication systems, drive systems, and boat 

and trailer rigging. Contact: 300 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

High School Credits to be Earned by the Student:  2 High School credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo(TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

School District Fall semester after 

Enrollment Verification 

District will be 

invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $100.00 Student fees for the Marine 

Service Technologies 

career dual enrollment 

 



 

 
 

24 

programs are covered by 

the CAP (Career and 

Professional Education) 

Grant for the 25-26 

academic year. This grant 

provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills while 

still in high school. 

 

 

  



 

 
 

25 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Veterinary Assisting Course ATE0006 

Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 (5040A) 

 
Program start date:  August 18, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time: 11:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. (450 Clock Hours) 

Class days:  Monday – Friday  

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Wakulla Center 

Courses: ATE0006 Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 

Course Description:  

ATE0006: The Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 1 course prepares students to 

understand the veterinary assistant profession, demonstrate proper use of veterinary science terminology, 

recognize normal and abnormal animal behaviors and how to restrain and control them, identify parts and 

functions of animal systems and various methods on how to identify animals, information related to 

animal control, welfare organizations, and animal-related laws, common husbandry practices and daily 

care of animals, preventative medicine and disease control and teaches students basic employability skills. 

Contact: 450 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count towards A.A. or A.S. degree. 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age 

• Be able to read, write, and speak English proficiently for training and safety purposes 

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $1,201.50 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

School District Fall semester after 

Enrollment Verification 

District will be 

invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $100.00 Student fees for the 

Veterinary Assisting 

career dual enrollment 

 



 

 
 

26 

programs are covered by 

the CAP (Career and 

Professional Education) 

Grant for the 25-26 

academic year. This grant 

provides coverage for 

student fees related to 

eligible programs reducing 

the financial impact on 

local school districts 

making it easier for 

students to participate in 

career dual enrollment 

opportunities and gain 

valuable career skills 

while still in high school. 

 

 

  



 

 
 

27 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Tallahassee State College 

& Wakulla County School Board 

Career Dual Enrollment – Welding Technology Courses PMT0070 

Welder Assistant I & PMT0071 Welder Assistant II (5023A) 

 
Program start date:  August 11, 2025 

Program end date:  May 22, 2025 

Class time:  8:30 a.m. – 12 noon (300 clock hours) 

Class days:  Monday - Thursday 

Class location:  Tallahassee State College – Advanced Manufacturing Training Center 

Courses: PMT0070 Welder Assistant I; PMT0071 Welder Assistant II 

Course Descriptions:  

PMT0070: The Welder Assistant I course prepares students for entry into the welding industry.  Students 

explore career opportunities and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning 

skills key to the success of working in the welding industry.  Students study workplace safety and 

organization, basic manufacturing processes, metals identification, basic interpretation of welding 

symbols, and oxyfuel gas cutting practices. Contact: 150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count 

toward A.A. or A.S. degree. 

PMT0071: The Welder Assistant 2 course is designed to build on the skills and knowledge students 

learned in Welder Assistant I for entry into the welding industry.  Students explore career opportunities 

and requirements of a professional welder.  Content emphasizes beginning skills key to the success of 

working in the welding industry.  Students study drawings and welding symbols, intermediate oxyfuel gas 

cutting practices, plasma arc cutting principles, and basic shielded metal arc welding (SMAW). Contact: 

150 clock hours. Additional fee. Does not count toward A.A. or A.S. degree. 

industry.   

High School Credit to be Earned by the Student:  2 Elective High School credits 

 

Student eligibility requirements: 

• 2.0 high school unweighted grade point average 

• Must be at least 16 years of age  

 

Documents due to Joanne Gambles (TSC’s dual enrollment coordinator) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed TSC online application (submit online) 

• High School Transcript 

• Permission to register form 

• TSC Career Assessment/Advising Certificate of Completion 

 

Documents due to Cerissa Fondo (TSC’s Director of Business and Workforce) by August 1, 2025 

• Completed Workforce application 

 

 

 



 

 
 

28 

Program Costs Responsible for Payment Due Date of Payment 

Tuition:  $801.00 per student (based on $2.67 

per clock hour) 

School District  Fall semester after 

Enrollment 

Verification District 

will be invoiced 

 

Instructional Materials Fee $636.00 School District  

 

 




